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FORWARD
Laikipia University is a body corporate established through the Laikipia University
Charter of l9'r' February 2013. As the University continues to grow in leaps and bounds,

there is need to give full disclosures to the Government, staffand other stakeholders in

line with principles of good governance and statutory mandate.

This Annual Report highlights major achievements in our programmes and activities
in line with our core mandate of research, education, scholarship. outreach and

consultancy. The Report provides

for the year ended 30'h June 2020

the University disclosing the most

Liabilities and Reserves.

of the University's activities
statements of

Assets,

The year witnessed preparation and approva policies and

most remarkably the Financial Management Policies and Procedures Manual which
is expected to improve on financial management and reporting. In the salne year,

the University launched and adopted a new Strategic Plan (2018119-2022123) that is
expected to reposition the University as influential voice on higher education through
transformation of the society.

From a financial perspective, the University continues to exhibit resilience in its
growth trajectory amid tough economic times. However, during the year under review,
the University recorded decline in financial performance due to Covid-19 pandemic

resulting to a deficit of Kes.45.6 million in201912020 F.Y from a surplus of Kes. 63.34

million in 2018/2019 F.Y.
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ABOUT US

Laikipia Univcrsity was founded in 1929 as a primary school by William Thomas Alfred
Levct. Bctwecn l9(r5 and 1970. the lnstitution served as a Large-Scale Farmers Training
College (l-SFTC). The LSFTC was adn.rinistered by the Ministry of Agriculture and

Aninral [1usbandry. In October 1979, it was convcrted into an Animal Husbandry and

Inrlustry Training lnstitute (AHITI) ollering a two-year course leading to a Certificate
in Aninral Hcalth. In 1990, Laikipia University was established as a Campus of Egerton
Llniversity. lt remained a campus of Egerton University between 1990 till 2010 majoring
in BEd Arts. ln 201 I it bccame a Constituent University College of Egerton University
until l9th Fcbruary 2013.

Laikipia University was awarded Charter on l9 Fehruary 2013 by the then President of
thc llcpublic of Kcnya; his Excellency Hon. Mwai Kibaki This rnade the institution a

lir I ly-lictlgctl U nivcrsity.

Award of Charter (l/' February,20I3)

Currently, the University has tbur (4) schools otfering various progranrmes. The
schools arcl

* School of Education.

n School ofScicnce and Applicd Tcchnology,

* School ol'Business and Ecclnomics and

* School of Ilumanities and Developnlent Studies

I
I
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Fundamental University Statements
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Key Entity Information
a) Backgroundlnformation

Laikipia University is a body corporate established through the Laikipia University
Clraner of l9'h February 2013.

b) PrincipalActivities

The principal activity of the University as stipulated in the Laikipia University
C'harter of l9'r'February 2013. Part Il Sec 7(l) which is to provide directly, or in
collaboration with other institutions, integration of teaching, research and effective
application of knowledge and skills.

c) Key lVlanagement

Laikipia University organs and their functions are anchored in the University
charter of 2013. The main management organs of the University are;

l. University Council

2. Vice Chancellor

3. University Management Board

4. University Senate

d) f iduciary Management

t he key managenlent pcrsonnel who held office during the financial year ended
30'r' June, 2020 and who had direct responsibility were;

S/No. Designation
I Vice Chancellor
2 Deputy Vice Chancellor (ARSA)
3 Ag. Deputy Vice Chancellor (Al"'P)
4 Registrar, Academics Affairs
5 Registrar (A&HC')
6 I- inance Olfie cr
7 Ag. Procurcr.nent Officer

e) l-iduciary OversightArrangements

Laikipia University has the foll<-rwing fiduciary oversight arrangements;

(i) Intcrnal Audit Function

Ftrnctions of lnternal Audit include and not limited to verification and review

I ision: 1 I trir Lt tttr hr- l,tl k,\l l t',tt\/, )rDtttlt )n t )/,\t )( tt,tr

Name
Prof. Kibett Rotich, PhD
Prof. Wanjiku Chiuri, PhD
Prof. Isaac Ochieng, PhD
Dr. Raphael Kiugu, PhD
Mr. Joseph K. Kairu
CPA. Geofrey K. Langat
Ms. Violet Mideva

@ Laikipia University is ISO 9001:2015 and ISO/IEC 27001:2013 Certified @
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of periodic financial stateulelrts and expressing arr 01'rrrrion trir rih,;tircr lh,:i,

represent the true financial position ol the [-.;niversitl rrr:iirrc tl.!c Jrjc..)1,r..1: iro
submittecl to other users.

(ii) Audit, Governance & I{isk Managcnrcnt (lommitt.-'e r-rt t-',-ruqc!l

The Committee reviews financial statenrcnts bclorc subrnrssiorl t.r tirc
University Council lbcusing on changes of accountrng policics. cornpliarr,-:e

with legal requirernents and strengtheniug tirc elieerircne:,s oi rhc irrtcr.n;rl

audit function.

(iii) Public lnvestment Cornrnittee (PlC) ol'National Assenri:ly

The University submit annually auditecl finarrcial statenlerlts to tlic public

Investment Committee of National Asse nrbly' fbl deliberariorr and ()\ crsight on

whether the funds were appliccl 1el the intcndcd pulposc"

f) Entity Headquarters

Laikipia University
P. O. Box I 100-20300

Nyahururu
Along Nyahururu -Nakuru Road

g) Entity Contacts

TEL: +254-(0) 20 2696596;

Cell: +254'7 l3-5527 6t I (0)736-29996 I

www.laikioia.ac.ke

h) Laikipia University Bankers

(i) KCB Bank Kenya (ii)
Limited
Nyahururu Branch
P.O.Box 64-20300
NYAHURURU

KCB Bank Kenya
Lirnited
Nakuru Branch
P.O. Box ltl-20100
NAKURU

Equity Bank
Nyahururu
Branch
P.O. Box 1048-
20300
NYAHTJRURU

(iii)

(iv) Co-operative Bank of (v)
Kenya
Nyahururu Branch
P.O.Box 307-20300
NYAHURURU

('o-operative tsank o1'

Kenya
Nakuru Branch
P.O.Box 2982-20100
NAKURU

lision: .l l.nt\tr\tt\ lt)t', t,, t i t, . , ,, ,1 '
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i) IndependentAuditors
Office of the Auditor General

Kenya National Audit Office
Anniversary Towers, University Way

P.O.Box30084-00100

NAIROBI

j) Principal Legal Adviser

The Attomey General

State Law Office
Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 401l2
City Square 00200

NAIROBI

|lsion: A Unirersilr lor l'olued Trunt/brmotion ol Socict.r'

Mission: To sen'e stud<nts oNl sqidt lhrough reseun h. edu(alion, s<'fularship, tdining, innoruti(,n, outauc'h und <tnsuhun<_t'

@ Laikipia University is ISO 9001:2015 and ISOTIEC 2100122013 Certified @



Laikipia University, Annual Report & Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30th June 2020

LAIKIPIA UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

Dr, Ken Nyaundi,
(PhD, LLM, LLB)

Chalrman

I,\

Dr. Moses Siruri Marwa
(PhD, MSc -HRM, BSc,)

Member

Ms, Ruth Adhiambo Okowa
(MA, BA)
Member

CPA David Namu Kariuki
(MBA, BCom. CPA(K),CPS(K))

Member

Ms. Pauline Ngari
(MBA, BCom)

Memher

Mr. Sammy Oleku
(MBA,BBM,BA)

Member

Mr. Joseph Kiarii
(BCom, CIFA)

Rep. PS, Nrtlonrl TFeruury

--
Dr. Mary W. Gaturu HSC. Prof. Kibett Rotich

(PhD, MEd., BEd.) (PhD, MBA, Msc, BSc.)

Rep. PS Mlnlstry of Educatlon Vlce Chancellor/Councll Secretrry

ion: A Univ'rsiq,rtrr Valucd Transft>rrutiot of &riet-v
Mision: To san'e sludcnts dnd sNi"ty thmugh research, edwation, scholarehip, trdining. innovation. oulrea<:h onl corcullanc.t'
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tlniversity Council Members' Prrofiles
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30109120t9 Bachclor ol Directoratc ol'
Portfolio Management
and I)uhlic
lnvcstrncnts. The
National Treasury and
Planning
Cerlified Investment
and Financial Analysts

;. Director. Directorate of
Quality Assurance &
Standards - MoE

i Deputy Dircctor ol
Education Ministry of
Flducation

z Regional Co-ordinator ol
Education - Rifi Valley

i Senior Grailuate Teacher
- TSC

i Vicc-Chancellor, Laikipia
University

; Doputy Vicc Chirncellor
(Administration and
[]inance) at Masinde
Muliro Unilr:rsity of
Science antl Technology

i Deputy Principal
(Academic & Student
Allairs) at Rongo
University College

z Acting Principal Garissa
University College

i Acting Principal at
Kabianga Campus

r [)can, School of Put'rlic
Health at Moi University

i Prol'essor ol' Biostatistics
at Moi University

z Statistician CDC Entebe
Uganda

z Consultant Biostatistician
lbr Academic Model
tbr Providing Access to
Health Care (AMPATH)

l.-
Mr. Joseph
Kiarii.
Representing
PS, National
Treasury

29t09fi966

20nllt963

Commerce
(BCom),
Accounting
Option,
University of
Nairobi (UoN)
Certified
lnvestment
and Financial

(CIFA)

> MBA (JKUAT)
> Post Doctoratc

in Medical
lnformatics.
(lndiana
University-tJSA )

> Ph.D. in
Mathernatics.
Shanghai
University ol
Science and
Technology

i Msc. Statistics.
(Univcrsity of
Southampton -
UK)

i BSc. Mathematics
and Statistics.
(University of
Nairobi)

lrLsion: 1 Univ,rsitt litr lblu*l Trorlormution tf Stxiett
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8. Dr. Mary W.

Gaturu. HSC
(Rep. PS

Ministry of
Education)

04.06.201 8 > PhD. -Kenyatta
University

i Med. (Kenyatta
University)

, Bed. - (Kenyatta
University)

i Stratcgic
Leadership - KSG

1 958 l 2.06.201 89. Prol. Kibett
Rotich,
(VC/Council
Secretary)
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University Council Committees

Finance, Investment &
General Purposes

Audit, Governance &
Risk Management

Human Resource
Management

Academic & Research

lt6ioa: A llnitcrsiltrtr Vohel Tronsfomatkrn of *t(idv

Name of Committee Committee Members
l. Dr. Moses Siruri Marwa - Chairperson
2. Ms. Ruth Adhiambo Okowa
3. Mr. Sammy Oleku
4. Mr. Joseph Kiarii
5. Dr. Mary W. Gaturu
6. Prof. Kibett Rotich - Vice Chancellor/Council

Secretary

l. Mr. David Namu Kariuki - Chairperson
2. Ms. Pauline Ngari
3. Mr. Joseph Kiarii,
l. Ms. Pauline Ngari- Chairperson
2. Ms. Ruth Adhiambo Okowa
3. Dr. Moses Siruri Marwa
4. Mr. David Namu Kariuki
5. Mr. Joseph Kiarii
6. Dr. Mary W. Gaturu
7. Prof. Kibett Rotich- Vice Chancellor/Council Secretary

l. Ms. Ruth Adhiambo Okowa - Chairperson
2. Dr. Moses Siruri Marwa
3. Mr. Sammy Oleku
4. Mr. David Namu Kariuki
5. Ms. Pauline Ngari
6. Mr. Joseph Kiarii
7. Dr. Mary W. Gaturu
8. Prof. Kibett Rotich -Vice Chancellor/Council Secretary

@ Laikipia University is ISO 9fl)l:2015 and ISO/IEC27OOl:2013 Certified @
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University Management Board

Prof. Kibett Rotich,
(PhD, MBA, Msc., BSc.)

Vice Chancellor

Prof. L. Wanjiku Chiuri,
(PhD, MES, BA)

Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Academic,
Research & Students Affairs)

Dr. Raphael Kiugu
(PhD, MSc., MEd., BEd.)

Registrar (Academics
Affairs)

saac
(PhD, MCom., BCom)

Ag. Deputy Vice-Chancellor
(Administration, Finance & Planning)

BA)
CPA Geofrey K. Langat
(MBA, BBA,(CPA(K))

Finance Officer

Mr. Joseph
(MBA,
Registrar

(Administration &
Human Capital)

)/ision: A Lnitersit.r'lir lilwd Trans/irmation of So<'ie6

Mission: To sene thvlents dnd soLien, thxngh resaunh, e(huatti(rn, s<holarship, ,ruining, innovation, onrcach arul consuhon<'y
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Deans of Schools

Prof. MbuthiaNgunjiri
(ItD"tilE4 BEd_)
Dean, School of

Education

Dr. Peter Mwaura
(PhD, MBA, BCom.)

Ag. Dean, School of Business

Prof. Charles Nguta
(PhD. MSc, BSc.)

Dean, School of Science
and Applied Technology

Prof. Vicky Telewa
(PhD. MA, Bed.)

Dean, School of Humanities and
Development Studies

l'ision: .4 L'iliyL,r\it.\-kt liiluttl TiLuts/intnttn t)l *x idt

@ Laikipia University is ISO f)01:2015 and ISOTIEC 27001:.2013 Certified @



Laikipia University, Annual Report & Financial Statements lor the Year Ended 30th June 2020

Core Business of Laikipia University
The main objectives of the University are stipulated in the Laikipia University Charter

of l9,h February 2013. Part II Sec 7(l) of the Charter provides the functions and

objectives of the University which are;

a) To provide directly, or in collaboration with other institutions, integration of
teaching, research and effective application of knowledge and skills;

b) Participate in scholarly work, discovery transmission, utilization, preservation and

enhancement of knowledge with a view to stimulating intellectual participation of
students in the economic, social, cultural, scientific and technological development

of Kenya;

c) Establish centers ofexcellence, colleges, schools, faculties, institutes, departments,

and other resource and administrative units as may be appropriate;

d) Facilitate student and staffmobility between programmes of study at local, regional,

and intemational universities and institutions;

e) Participate in commercial ventures and activities that promote the objectives of the

institutions;

0 Foster the general welfare ofstaffand students;

g) Develop and provide educational, cultural and professional services that foster

corporate social responsibility in the University and collaborating institutions;

h) Promote equity and social justice;

i) Offercontinuing professional development opportunities;
j) Conduct examinations for and to grant and confer such academic awards as may

be provided for in the Act and the Statutes;

k) Establish a High Altitude International Sports Training Centre for training, teaching,

research, and recreation;

l) Contribute to sustainable development of Arid, and Semi-Arid Lands resources of
Kenya;

m) Engage in action research, extension and outreach; and

n) Establish an Information, Communication and Technology hub in teaching,

research, training, outreach and consultancy in the region and globally.

tlsion: .4 Ltniversit-t,.lor Litlutd l'runslinttutitD ol Sodcl.t
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Corporate Governance, Management and Ethics
The following information describes the governance and legal structure ofthe University.
These govemance arrangements are for the most part set out in the University Statutes
and Regulations

University Council

The University Council is the supreme organ that oversees the running of the University
by the University Management Board and the Senate. The Council provides facilities
necessary for carrying out the academic and administrative work of the University in
accordance with the Charter and Statutes. The Council is responsible for the governance

of the University and is accountable to the citizens of this country for ensuring that
the University complies with the Law and maintains the highest standard of corporate
govemance, academic standards and ethics. Accordingly the council attaches great

importance to the generally accepted corporate governance practices and the need

to conduct the activities and operations of the University with integrity, quality and

respect. The University Council defines the University strategies, objectives and values

and ensures that procedures and practices are set in place to ensure effective control
over financial, strategic, operations and compliance issues.

Council Meetings

The Council holds meetings on a regular basis while special meetings are called when

it is deemed necessary to do so.

Committees of the Council

The Council is advised by a range of committees. The Council has set up four principal
committees and one adhoc committee which meet under well-defined terms ofreferences
as set up in Laikipia University Statutes. This is intended to facilitate efficient decision
making of the Council. The committees are; Finance Investment & General Purposes,
Audit, Governance and Risk Management, Human Resource Management, Academic
Research and Sealing and StaffAppointment's and Appeals and Grievances Handling
which is an adhoc committee.

Audit, Governance and Risk Management Committee

The committee assists the University Council to fulfil its corporate governance
responsibilities and in particular to:

yision: .4 Unitersin./br lTiluetl Truntformation oJ Stx.irt.r'

Mission: To en'e sludaills an.l s(ri?b* lhrorgh rasean h, c.lu.dlion. x'holarship. truining, innowtion, outrcat h dnd
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{. Review financial statements before submission to the University Council focusing

on changes of accounting policies, compliance with the International Public Sector

Accounting Standards and legal requirements and the going concern assumption.

.1. Strengthen the effectiveness of the internal audit function.

.f. Maintain oversight on internal control systems

.t Review and make recommendations regarding the University's budgets, financial
plans and risk management.

Finance, Investment and General Purposes Committee of Council

Laikipia University has defined procedures and financial controls to ensure the reporting

of complete and accurate accounting information. These cover systems for obtaining

authority for all transactions and ensuring compliance with the laws and regulations that

have significant financial implications. In reviewing the effectiveness of the internal

control system, the University Council takes into account the results of work carried out

to audit and review the University activities. The University Council also considers the

management accounts for each quarter, reports from each council committee. annual

budgetary proposals, major issues and strategic opportunities for the University.

Human Resource Management Committee

The Committee reviews and recommends on issues relating to trainine needs, staff
recruitments, promotions, discipline, and staff welfare.

Academic and Research Committee

The Committee reviews and recommends on issues relating to academic and research

The committee provides direction on scholarly work; establish centres of excellence

schools, faculties, institutes and departments as may be appropriate.

University Management Board

The Mce-Chancellor is the Chairman of the Senate and University Management Board.

He is also the administrative and academic head of the University assisted by two
Deputy Mce-Chancellors, one in Charge of Academic, Research and Students Affairs
and the other in-charge ofAdministration, Finance and Planning.
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University Senate

The Universify has four Schools (Education, Humanities and Development Studies,

Science and Applied Technology and Business & Economics) and one Institute (Arid
Lands Management) that offer both undergraduate and postgraduate studies. The

University has various support departments. The Deans are the academic heads in their
respective schools supported by chairperson of departments. Other members of the

Senate include Directors heading various directorates in the University.
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Statement from the Chairman of Council

Dr. Ken Nyaundi, PhD

Following the successful conclusion of 201912020 FY. lt
is my pleasure, honouq and privilege to present to you on

behalf of the Laikipia University Council, the Annual Report

and Financial Statements for the year ended 30'r'June, 2020.

This annual report helps us to reflect on our perfbrmance fbr

the year giving us an opportunity to celebrate our success

and at the same time identify areas of improvement.

The demand for higher education in the country has

continued to rise prompting the University to continually

review its programmes in line with the rrarkct dermand.

This will help sustain us financially in the years to come and support htrndreds of
different funds that support students, faculty and teaching. and research each year.

Another highlight this past year was the work carried out by people across the university

to ensure Laikipia University is taking steps to build a more progressive Institution. The

University will continue to reposition its main brands within the context of rnarket

requirements, customer satisfaction and cost rationalization. The need to nleet this

objective over years has remained the central focus of the University Council. Our

current management focuses on expansion of the University while maintaining quality

in line with our vision. In line with the GOK policy, the University has increased access

to higher education through additional admission of students. This in effect has led

to increase in operation costs and need for more physical facilities. We also received

incredible support from national government through Ministry of Education in the

20 19 -2020 Financial year.

Overall Performance
The year 201912020 financial performance was achieved through concerted effort by

the University Council, Management Board and the entire staff of Laikipia University.

However, the University financial performance as witnessed in other global economic

sectors was affected by the COVID-19 pandemic resulting to decline of revenue by

ll%. The total income decreased from Kes. 1.25 billion in 201812019 to Kes. l.l1
billion in 201912020 Financial Year. The University experienced a deficit ol Kes. 45.6

milf ion in the current year compared to a surplus of Kes. 63.34 million in 201812019

FY. The net assets grew by 2.2o/o from Kes. 1.954 billion in 201812019 to Kes. 1.998

billion in 201912020 FY.
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Statement from the Vice Chancellor
It is a great honor to note the continued delivery ofrecord
financial results by the University. It has been my very
great pleasure to serve as Vice-Chancellor for the last two
years and see the University grow to a more agile and

focused organization, tackling the pressing issues oftoday
as it inspires enquiring minds to take on the challenges

of tomorrow. Through our concerted efforts, Laikipia
University has continued to make its mark as a University
of Choice to many aspiring students on higher education.

Prof. Kibett Rotich, PhD
Certainly, the annual report and financial statement for

the year ended 30'h Jwe,2020 are an indication of what transpired in the University.

Notwithstanding the difficult environment in which we find ourselves, the report

provides ample evidence of the University's determination to build on our success,

of our commitment to remain one of the world's great institutions of research and

education, and of our ability to evolve to meet the challenges of our time

I wish to convey to you that the University was really affected by the Clobal pandemic

of COVID-19 as we closed the University prematurely in the second semester. In this

regard we reported a lower income than expected.

The 201912020 Annual Report also captures the events of the year including physical

infrastructure development and finances. The Report reflects the commitment and

determination of the University to achieve world class excellence, despite the hurdles

occasioned by economic down turn and its impact on recurrent funding from the

Exchequer.

The University continued to offer education and training ito meet the needs and

aspirations of the Kenyan people, as evident in the highlights of academic programmes

undertaken in the Schools and units of the University. Our programmes remain critical
in the wake of global economic crisis that threatens the socio-economic growth of any

developing nation.

Further, as part of world trends and practices, the Report carries detailed information on

the University's financial performance during the year, providihg a summary of the state

of health of the University as a corporate entity. The Report notes that while there was

prudent management of the human, material and financial rdsources; the loyalty and

commitment of staffwas critical in enabling the University to discharge its mandate.

I
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Financial Resources

Laikipia University relies heavily on the government funding in order to run its
operations. Although funding fiom the government has steadily increased over the

years, it is not commensurate with the increasing number of enrolled government

sponsored students and the needs of the University. This delicit in funding is particularly
pronounced in respect of Capital Funding from the National Government which has

been on the downward trend. With a view to supplementing the capitation it receives

from the government. The University will seek to strengthen its financial position and

to maximize the resources available for investment in research and teaching. Key to
achieving this will be the University's ability to deliver more efficient, effective and

sustainable services.

Additionally the University has been able to manage her limited financial resources with
a lot of efficiency which has necessitated timely payment of salaries for staff, settlement

of suppliers'claims as well as the provision of a conducive working environment for
all members of staff

Automation of University Operations

To ensure that all University operations have been automated, the University has procured

and is implementing Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) from ABNO Solutions. The

new ERP is an integrated system comprising various interlinked modules in Students

Management, Financial Management, Procurement and Stores Management, Human

Resource Managernent, Payroll Management, Students Academics, Timetabling, Hostel

Management, Library Managenrent, Health Management and Students'Portal among

others. To improve on University connectivity, we have procured and expanded internet

connectivity networks (Local Area Network - LAN and WIFI) and also increased

hotspots points in the University.

ISO Certification

The witnessed certification to Intbrmation Security Managernent System (ISMS)

based on ISO/lEC 21001:2013 and Quality Management Systern (QMS) based on ISO

9001 :2015 requirements. The certificates ofthe two Management Systems were awarded

by Kenya Bureau of Standards (KEBS). Laikipia University is the Second University in

Kenya to attairr ISO/lEC2700l:20 l3 and tho Fourth institution countrywide to attain

such a fete.

Strategic Plan

The Urriversity luanched 201812019 to 202212023 Strategic Plan and aligned it to

the "Big Four" .Agenda, Medium-Tenn Plan lll of Kenya Vision 2030 Development
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Blueprint. The Strategic Plan is a pathway that outlines areas of strategic focus. It is

an important guide which provides a vibrant tool fbr the University in realizing her

mandate. The Plan outlines the future needs and aspirations of all stakeholders, and

provides a framework through which the University would achieve her desired t'uture.

The Strategic Plan emphasizes on transformational leadership at all levels of the

University management and a change of mind-set among key stakeholders to rnake

Laikipia University a true University for valued transformation of society. The Plart

hence defines the strategic direction for the University and provides a roadmap to

mobilizing and budgeting of resources for the next five years.

We wilt continue with the implementation of our five year strategic plan with a

view to achieving the set strategic objectives. We will exercise agility in strategy

implementation taking cognizance of the expected changes in the internal and external

operating environments. We believes that the set strategic objectives will steer us to our

desired corporate destination

Farm Business Plan

The university also witnessed launch of farm business plan which is anchored in the

Strategic Plan. The plan will create a Centre of Excellence in Agriculture in the region

and hence play a critical role towards empowering the youth and the community on

modern farming technologies.

Appreciation

I take this opportunity to thank the University Council for their support to the University.

I would also like to thank the Government through the Ministry of Education for its

financial support throughout the year under review and also appeal for more support

especially for purposes of establishing suitable facilities required by the University. I

also take this opportunity to thank the University Management Board fbr their support

as well as the dedicated and talented staffand students for their eflbrts in making sure

that the University achieves its goals and objectives. Lastly, Iappreciate our sc'rvicc'

providers, suppliers and all other stakeholders fbr their respective contributions to the

University during the year. We look forward to an even greater and bountiful year in

202012021 Financial Year.

lffifi-'t 

-

Prof. Kibett Rotich, Ph.D

Professor of Biostatistics and Informatics

VICE CHANCELLOR
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Corporate Social Responsibility Statement
Laikipia University's Corporate social responsibility is based on the fact that, as part
of the Kenyan society, we have responsibilities that go beyond our legal obligations
for the benefit of the society at large. Our corporate social responsibility (CSR) entails
community engagement, supporting community activities, responding to emerging
challenges, donating to charities, helping the needy and application ofethical conduct
and participating in matters of topical national interest in Kenya. Our CSR involves
building relationships and partnerships and working together with organizations that
we believe advance the wellbeing olKenyans.

During the year under review, the Universiry participated in the fbllowing cSR
activities;

a) Supporting the less fortunate in society

Laikipia Universiry endeavors to support the less fbrtunate students in the University.
The University awarded Kes. 1,000,000 as bursaries to the needy students during the
year.

The University also assists needy students with financial support under the work study
programme. During the year under review, the University paid Kes. 502,600 to assist
the needy students under this programme.

b) EnvironmentalConservation

The University held an environmental week in during the year where stafrand
students participated in tree planting exercise.

c) Free Health Clinic

The University organizes a health week annually ofl'ering free medical check-ups to
staff. str.rdents and the ('ornmunity.
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Report of the Council
The University Council submits this report for the year ended 30'h June, 2020 together

with the audited financial statements for the year ended 30'h June, 2020 that shows the

state of Laikipia University's affairs.

a. Principalactivities

The principal activities of Laikipia University continue to be teaching, training,

innovation, research and outreach

h. Results for the Year

The results of Laikipia University for the year ended June 30, 2020 are set out on

pages 55-59.

c. Directors

The members of the University Council who served during the year are shown on

page l.

d. Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of Laikipia University in

accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act
2015 for the year ended June 30,2020.

By Order of the University Council

lr{w, 

-

Vice Chancellor/Council Secretary

Laikipia University
Date: 2 5/0?/2020.
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Statement of Council Members' Responsibilities
on the Financial Statements

Thc Laikipia University Council members are responsible for the preparation and
presentation o1'the financial statements set out on pages 55 to 59 which comprise the
staterncnt of financial position for the year ended 30'h June, 2020, statement of financial
perfonnance, statcment ofcash flow, statement ofchanges in reserves for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The Council mernbers responsibility includes: determining that the basis of accounting
described in note I, is an acceptable basis for preparing and presenting the financial
statenlents in the circumstances; designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthese financial statements that are

liee frorn rnaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriatc accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable
in the circumstances.

The Laikipia University Charter requires the University Council to prepare statements
for each financial year, which give a true and fair view of the state of aff'airs of the
University at the end of the financial year and its operating results for that year. It also
rcquires thc council to ensure that the University keeps proper accounting records,
which disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the University. The
University Council is also responsible for safeguarding the Assets of the University.

The University Council accepts the responsibility for the financial statements, which
have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable
and prudcrrt judgments and estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards. The University Council is of the opinion that the statements
give a true and fair view of the state of the financial alfairs of the University as at 30'h

June 2020 and ofits operating results.

'f hc University Council further accepts responsrbility fbr the maintenance of accounting
records. which may be relied upon in the preparation of financial statement, as well as

adecluate systems of Internal Financial Controls.

The Council has made an assessment of the University's ability to continue as a going
concern and nothing has come to their attention to indicate that the University will
not rcmain a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this
statement.
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Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements, as indicated above were approved by the University Council

and were signed on its behalf by;

Dr. Ken Nyaundi, Ph.D

CHAIRMAN OF COUNCIL
Prof. Kibett Rotich, Ph.D

VICE CHANCELLOR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Section A: Laikipia University's Operational and Financial performance

Universities are increasingly complex institutions operating in an increasingly complex
and regulated environment. Laikipia University has a responsibility to ensure a valued
transformation of society through research, education scholarship, training, outreach
and consultancy. The University's ongoing sustainability is dependent upon the
generation of a sufficient surplus to invest in the maintenance, renewal and replacement
of the infrastructure to support academic endeavor, such as libraries, tuition rooms,
laboratories, ICT infrastructure and research equipment. This section of the report
therefbre highlights our operational and financial performance in support of the core
business of the university; Academic and Research. This overview provides some
highlights of the University as follows;

l. OperationalHighlights

Through a commitment to the personal education of each student, the University is
committed to providing quality education and experience which equips students with
the values, skills and intellectual discipline that will enable them to make a positive
contribution to society. The University seeks to equip all its students with the skills and
knowledge to succeed in future study or employment. To support this noble course, the
University invested a total of Kes. L6 billion in 2019/2020 Budger rhough this could
not fully materialize as a result of covlD-19 pandemic. The University remained
closed since March 2020, affecting the projected revenue and activities during the
year. Notwithstanding the challenges. the University was able to record commendable
achievements in various fields as indicated by the following highlights;

i) Students Admission

.J.
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Over 1200 fieshmen selected Laikipia University as their University of Choice in

the 201912020 academic year. lt is worth noting that this intake was higher than the

last year's intake with the gender ratio being 50:50 making the University gender

compliant. This increase in number of students pref'erring to study in Laikipia
University is a clear demonstration that the University is discharging her mandate

eftrciently and eflectively by leveraging on her niche areas by ofl'ering education

which matches the best international standards. Serene learning environmcrtt,

location of the University in semi-urban area and along the tourism corridor were

among the factors that attracted the lieshmen to this great University.

The University students'statistics fbr active students only stood at5,347 students

distributed across the tbur schools as tbllows;

201912020 Students' Statistics per School - Active students only

School GSSP PSSP Total

School of Education 2160 2413

I 0582 School ofBusiness t0r3

J

4

School of Humanities & Development Studies

School of Science & Applied Technology

874 9r0

Total

e92',

5009

4

338

966

5347

NB: The numbers excluded non-activc students in the systenr during thc 201912020

FY

ii) UniversityGraduation
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Laikipia University has continued to make its mark as a University of Choice to
nrany aspiring students on higher education. The University held its 7'r'Graduation
ceremony cln 6'r'December 2019. The ceremony witnessed the conf'erment of
degrees and award of diplomas to over 2,300 graduands.

During the 20 l9 graduation cerernony, the University, Pursuant to Laikipia
University Charter,20l3 Section lll, (2 l) (4) (k) on the conferment of Honorary
Degrees and upon recommendation of the University Senate and approval thereof
by the Laikipia University Council, presented Mr. Eliud Kipchoge to Kenyans and

the international comrnunity fbr the award of Doctor of Science (Honoris Causa).

The University Senate in making this award noted that Eliud had made tremendous

contributions in the realm of sports. The Senate specifically recognized his most

recent achievernent of becoming the first human in history to run a sub-two-hour
marathon. ln a remarkable f-eat of endurance, Eliud delivered his "moon-landing"
moment by crossing the finish line in a mind-blowing time of l:59:40 in Vienna, as

he delivered on his pledge to prove that "No Human Is Limited".

,ll<'trrln't'.s rtf Lttrit't't'.sil.r'(.ottnt'il ('otturuttrlotitrg ,lfr: L.litrd Kiltcltrryt,.lin'thL,uttunl

iii) ISO Certification
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During the year under review, the University made a great milestone and attained

double ISO certification to lnfbrrnation Security Managetnent Systern (ISMS)

based on ISO/lEC 27001,2013 and Quality Managcrnent System (QMS) based orr

ISO 9001 :201 5 requirements.
ttc 27001 :a9l t tne t'v '

TAUNCH OF STRATEGIC PLAN . 201 8t2023

ru FARM BU5

The University was awarded the certificates of the two Management Systems by

Kenya Bureau of Standards (KEBS). Laikipia University is the Second University

in Kenya to attain ISO/IEC 27001.2013 and the Fourth institution countrywide

to attain such a fbte. The simultaneous award of the two ISO certillcates is a

demonstration of the commitment shown by the University towards ensuring that

the quality of education and services oflbred conforms to international standards.

The cerrification to lSoilEC 27001:2013 and transition to ISo 9001:2015 clearly

shows that Laikipia University has enhanced her operations to continually improve

on the Confidentiality. Integrity and Availability ol' inlbrmation managelnent

systems, improve customer satisfaction and practice adherence to applicable

statutory and regulatory reqtlirelnents.

iv) Launch of Strategic Plan

,NIVT RSITY

STRATE L/\2()1At2o
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The Strategic Plan is a pathway that outlines areas of strategic focus. It is an
important guide which provides a vibrant tool for the University in realizing her
mandate. The Plan outlines the future needs and aspirations of all stakeholders,
and provides a framework through which the University would achieve her desired
future. The Strategic Plan emphasizes on transformational leadership at all levels
of the University management and a change of mind-set among key stakeholders
to make Laikipia University a true University for valued transformation of society.
The Plan hence defines the strategic direction for the University and provides a
roadmap to mobilizing and budgeting of resources for the next five years.

The implementation of the Plan will strategically position the University for
the next five years as a key player in the Kenya Government's realization of
Vision 2030 and the Global SDGs. The Strategic plan has been aligned to the
Government's "Big Four Agenda" Four Agenda", and the Medium-Term plan III
of Kenya vision 2030 Development Blueprint. [n light of the ongoing reforms
in the education sector, the Strategic Plan sets a platform for the identification of
niche areas to uniquely differentiate Laikipia Universiry. In addition, the plan lays
a pathway for modern infrastructural development to support the University in
realizing her core mandate.

consequently, the Strategic Plan is a road map of proactively refocusing the
University towards responding to emerging societal issues and is therefore geared
to positioning the University globally in order to achieve a competitive edge.

l'ision:,l l ; nilert fi' /i:,r liln,d Trtns/irtrtLti<tt ol &x icn
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v) Launch ofFarm Business Plan

7
FARM BU*C

201 9

J N IVERSITY

;S PLAN
I I

U
The Farm Business Plan is anchored in the Strategic Plan. The plan will create

a Centre of Excellence in Agriculture in the region and hence play a critical

role towards empowering the youth and the community on ntodern f'arrning

technologies. It will also make a contribution towards offering solutions to food

security issues in the ASAL areas.

At the national level. it is important to note that the Plan will contribute tou,arcls

the realization of the "Big FourAgenda". In this respect, the University has rnatle

a commitment to utilizing its available 439-acre arable land as a strategic resource

for meeting the Government's agenda of having a lbod secure nation.

The Farm Business Plan is a vehicle for re-engineering thc University Farm as

a key enabler in internal resource mobilization. The University can lavorably

undertake Agribusiness ventures as a way of creating demand for quality and

nutritional agricultural produce through value addition. A number o1'entcrprises

have been proposed to realize this including:

lision: .l I nt\\'r\ttt lr ltluLl lt-rrttlnilttilk)n.)/.\trkl\
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vi) Establishment of a Water Bottling Plant

During the year under review, the University established a water bottling plant

which is not only an income generating source. but will also go a long way in

addressing the problem of water scarcity facing the communities around.

To achievc this. the University:

> Secured water source points
'> 

R e fu r b i s h e d an d .fu rn i s h e d fa c i I i t1, fo r w at er b o t t I ing
'i Procttred water boltling machine

The University identified packaging materials for the Laikipia University Springs

bottled Water and also established a marketing strategy. However, commercialization
of this activity awaits Kenya Revenue Authority VAT and Excise duty certificates

)'ision: A Unitul it\' lbr I iluLrl'l ronsli rmut ioil ()l So( idl
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vii) Automation of University Processes

To ensure that all ulliversity operations havc been aLltolllated. the Ilni'.'ersity has

procured ancl is implcrxenting E,nterprise Resource Planning (EIIP) liorn ABNO

Solutions. The systenr is expected ttl cnhancc ettcierlcy and elll'ctir'eness in

service delivery in financial managenrent. rccords tuitnageltteltt. tirnetabling and

graduation among others. Intplenrentation process is in thc final stagtes u'ith few

customizations remaining in sotrle modulcs.

viii) Local Area Network & WiFi

The LJliversity has continued to expand internct conncctivity ( I-.ocal Area Nctwolk

- LAN and WIFI) within thc University compotrncl. [Jotspots poirrts havc also been

increased. During the period under rcvieu,, the Univcrsity invested a total of Kes.

6.4 million fbr the Expansion on LAN

lition: 1 [ t]t\t t \tt\ //)r I,tlilt tl I ntil\ltil-tttttttt ttt t'l \t 
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ix) Improvement of Library Services

l' I
I

l I
r,

I
j):Ii

i

i

J

i1 i

I
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During the 201912020 FY the University took several measures to improve library
services as indicated below:

* Installed KOHA- an open Source System - for Integrated Library automated
services.

* Procured current collection olbooks.journals and periodicals.

* The University established 2 mini libraries under the human rights center and
the gender center that are fully stocked.

* The University in partnership with the Laikipia University Alumni donated
reading shades to the green Iibrary

*

ta
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a
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x) Improvement of Health Services

During the year under review, Laikipia University took the tbllowing prouctive

steps to improvc health serviccs:

* Registered as an NHIF hospital with2417 medical services to statl, students

and surrounding community.

* Further, the University has acquired Serum Biochemistry analyzer ancl

Haematology analyzer machines and has Operationalized AIDS Control Unit.

.a. Additionally, the University has consistently held Annual Health Week event

which focuses on preventive health care to staff, students and surrounding

community. The stafl, students and surounding community benefit from
free access to a variety of medical services including cancer screening and

counselling, HIV/AIDS Counsel ling and testing, among others . The 20 I 9 I 2020

Health week was held on 23rd September -27th September 2019 with a theme

of fighting Non-Communicable Diseases tbr a better life

llcttltlt ll'cck )0l9
xi) Improvement of Existing lnfrastructure

()tt-goittg Titiliotr lJltx'k rtttd l,ibrur.t' t{ ,ldntitti.vlrulion l)ntf t't l.s
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The University is ensuring speedy completion of the ongoing projects to ensure

that staffand students have adequate olnce spaces and teaching/learning facilities.
The following projects are in the final stage of completion: Signature Gate, Library
and Administration Block, Tuition Blocks, Equipping Science Lab and equipping
of the Media Studio. The University has also embarked on the construction of the

Science Complex to house the School of Science.

r.he Science Cornprex r?r;L'.I,1,'i*',,,-'^,',J'r*';"::";';'i:r: ,xpected to take 54

weeks to completion. Percentage completion was reported at 43oh as at 30'h June

2020.

The University is progressively positioning itself towards being a Centre of
Excellence in Sports Science. Towards this vision, we have submitted a proposal

for a High-Altitude Training Facility. ln the meantime, we have three new play
fields fbr sporting activities.

lision: .1 l.Dtttr\ttt lt lttlrrLtl lrutt.tlrnnttottttl .*ttlr
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The leveled fields will have rwo soccer fields and two netball and two handball

courts. The Department looks forward to hosting inter-university games,

secondary, primary and countY games.

xii) Games and Sports

The University has also been taking part in Kenya University Sports Association

(KUSA) games. LU took part during the KUSA cross-country on 9 February 2020

and emerged second runners up on split points with Kenyatta University at 36

points tie. Two (2) of our students namely Victor Yator and Desmond Kipkoech

qualified for the World Universities games which were to be held in MaraKesh,

Morroco this year but has been put offdue to Covid-I9. Earlier on 2 February

2020, ow basketball ladies' team had qualified for the KUSA National Games

scheduled to take place between 28rh- 3Orh M arch2020 at Dedan Kimathi University

ofTechnology.

xiii)Clubs and Societies

Laikipia University has a huge establishment of clubs, associations and societies

that students can join. The clubs and societies give students an opportunity to

interact, enhance personal development and serve the society. They include;

* Drama Club/ Laikipia Traveling Theater

* Biosciences Student Association

* Brighter Future Club

, Catholic Association

* Agricultural Economics Club

* CHAWAKAMA
* Christian Union
* Computer Students Association

* Economic Students Association of Laikipia University (ESALU)
.f. Environmental Science Club

* EntrepreneursAssociation
llsion: A t-.initersit.v litr kilutd T'ronsJornution ol So.iel.\'
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During the year under review, our drama club/Laikipia Travelling Theater participated
in drama competition at county and Regional levels. The team was to participate
in National competition set for April 2020 in Mombasa but this was curtailed by
covoD-lg pandemic. The club did us proud by being overall l.,position after
participating in 8 out of 9 categories at the regional level in March 2020.

Laikipia Travelling Theatre performing ar Kericho Evangericar Highland
Un ivers ity- Regio nal Level

xiv) Improvement of the visibility of the University in the webo-Metrics

fdrq
OF

NKJNG \/VEB
UNIVERSITIE-S

The University Visibility in the Webometrics Ranking has improved. Webometric
is a tool for ranking institutions of Higher Education. The ranking takes into
consideration four parameters: openness, Impact, Presence and Excellence. The
aim of the Ranking is to improve the presence of the Academic institutions on the
web. This ranking system measures how strongly a university is present in the
web.

9lsion: .4 Lnivrsitt.for lilued Trons/brmntn ol Stxictt.
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LU improved on Webo-metric ranking by 272 steps from 14342 to 14070

internationally and nationally at 41. The improvement was occasioned by:

'/ Staff accessing pay slips online,

'/ Uploading of staff profiles on website
,/ Staff online leave application ond approval
./ Quarterly uploading of publications and proposals
,/ Establishment of sludents and staff portals

'/ Registration of Academic Staff on Google scholar and Research Gate

,/ Publishing oJ'Periodic Digital Online Newsletter-Info Point
,/ Revamping the (Jniversity Website and regularly updating the v'ebsite with the

latesl informalion
r' Provision of adequate internel infrastructure
,/ Maintaining and extending nebt ork cdhles to cover other areas in the university

/ Updating research publications on the universit-v website
,/ (Jse of corporate email address by stqff

xv) OtherAchlevements

!
IDt -

. Legally acquired title deeds for Main Campus land

. Legally acquired title deeds for Maralal Campus land

. Conducted fire drills, established fire assembly points and increased awareness

on fire safety
. Enhanced staffcapacity on Disability Mainstreaming and facilities
. Recruited Farm Manager
. Recruited Estate Manager
. Established distinct commercial farm and demonstration farm

. Developed and implemented the University Risk mitigation Plan on Corruption

prevention

).Lsion: ,l Iiniv,rsir.t .fir l'ulucd Trunslitrmuion oJ Sor itn
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. Establishntent ol'University Day Care Centre
2. FinancialHighlights

This section highlights the degrec to which financial ohjcctivcs have been accornplished.
It is the process of rneasuring the results oIa firm's policics and operations irr rnouetary
tcrms. It is uscd to measure firm's ovcrall flnancial health ovcra given period of tinre.
The section highlights financial perfbrmance lbr thc year ended 30,r, June 2020 with
comparison to results lbr the past five years.

a) Five Year Summary of Key Statistics

Statement of Financial Pcrlbrmancc

2019n020
REVENUE (30.06.2020)

Kc..
Rcr enue from Non-erchangc'I.ransactions
(io\crnrncnt(irants(llecumenl) 863,216.998
( irrnts & l)()nali(nrs I lll,61 7

863J55,6r5
Rerrnuc from l}change fransactions

Strrrlcnts'l:ccs 239,252,345
()thcr lnc(nncs 7,352,420

246,fi4,765

2018t20t9
(30.ffi.2019)

Kes.

2017fiE
(30.06.20r8)

Kes.

li6l .92 I . t03 792.297.t16t1

32l.nl0 0

862.24{.932 792,257,868

20t6n017
(10.06.2017)

Kes.

20tst20t6
(30.06.20t6)

Kes.

Tolal Rcl cnur
EX Pll\t)t',ru Rtl

Strll'('osts

Administmli\c [rrpcnses

Rcprirs & i\'hinlcnrncc l.)rpcnscs

('(ulrnclc(l Scr\ iccs

Acrtlenric & Rcscarch lirpenscs

Slrrtlcrrts \lt'llarc
(itrrncil Il\penses

Irinrrrcc ( hargc

I )cprcciatirrr

Pnrr isitrt lirr Itad l)chts

l-trss rrr I)isposal,'l )c-recoqnition

lbral
Oprrating Surplus/(I)eticia )

()ther Servicr Unils

lrrrnr l)rolit'( l_oss)

( rlcrinll l)rolit ([-oss)

Ittxrkshop/l\lgdisll Prolitr( Loss)

I'o(al ()ahcr Servicc lJnits

I,t09,960J80 t,217,218,200 r.143,886,485 1,227,029,168 1,067.105,166

.r44.71(0.{,r79

Ll0.222,lllL

385.00.1.267

-141.616. I I I

7.912.506

3st,588.6r7

869.r81.221

57.672.801

t2.261.132

6.088.994

t30.1,t07.528

9.438.105

il.221,762.

I,092.097

I 4,732. l 70

2,294.tt I 6

0

r,l|4,790,629

29,09s,856

714.20s, r 54

()

724.205,1 5,1

.t59,342. | 0l
4-1.,11{2.211

502.82{Jr4

e5ll. I 6.1,917

7t{.90 I ,989

7.49.1,1ti2

5.1 n7.5 t 0

I 57.9_16.8 I 2

I 6, l.{7.,156

9. r 04,172

1.862,0{)4

21.44 t.q69

t .3 il .091

0

t.258.552,420

(3r,s22,952)

5.17,-l-15,522

I 6,500

517-752.022

457.695.249

62,058.596

519,7s-l,845

766.4202.13

I 03,586. I 07

9.552.20 r

5.-r28,237

I 74,810,5 l0
I 2,2It6.294

8,979,747

|,862,025

24.467,732

6,693,066

0

I,114,006.t32

(46,900.265)

m7,330,144

65.2'11,322

8,28t,891

2.921.642

I I 8,,145,906

8.740.078

I 1,478,799

0

34.782,057

( 71e,826)

0

I,r s6,5 r 8.0 I 2

(,t6557,632)

879.81t.268

7..].921.,16.]

7.59-5.057

1.667.6.14

I lr I .0n1.677

t.1.0e6. I l-1

9.522.'l I I

0

I rl.9-11.740

(2.,190.052 )

t.491,76.1

1.r82,655,105

64.593,09s

I I,666

921.607

0

935,273

(741.7O7\

(501.705 )

0

( r.248.4 I 2)

( 1,746. 1 87)

I I 5,844

459.728

(r. r 70,6r s)

l. I 56.59s

( r.e3 r.74 I )

(f6.477\

1,r88J76

250. r 86

(2,27 I .855)

(rer.r96)

12.2t2,8641

lbtal surplus/(l)rlicit) (45.622J59) 6l-14{.683 27,92s,241 (30.134.576) (49.[-1,t29)
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Statement of F'inancial Position

DETAILS

ASSETS

('urrcnt Asscts

Cash & ( ash liquir alcnls

Rcccir ablcs liorrr Iixchange
'IrrISilclions

Rcccivables litmt Nott-cxchrnge

2019no20
(30.05.2020)

Ka.

2018/2019
(30.05.2019)

K*

20t7n8
(30.ffi.2018)

Ks.

20t6n0t7
(30.06.2017)

Kes.

20t5nol5
(30.05.2015)

Ke3.

l ransacli()ns

lnvcntories

'l'otal Current Assets

38.604,128

I 95,194,426

0

r 9.392.08 I

253.190,835

22,2q2,890

201,852,859

77.269.54e

I 7.676.e10

319,092,208

85,046. I 32

2?4.576.'709

0

r 3.757,09 I

323J79,e32

1.420. I 75.978

93.538

I 0. I 61.220

6.03 1.1 00

I,436.46-1,836

1.75.r,E1!.767

91.912.".]04

201.923.36 I

I 50, I 67.5.1 I

16,-152,0.1r

{64,-175,254

l.-t 7e- I 6-1.79()

lltt.e | 6

9.4 I l.llr)
l.8.l7.lxx)

t,.19-1.652.926

1.858.028.179

14,324,339

t92.t2J.544

0

l 9.76{,559

226,212,44!

| .229.011 t.771

79lt.97?

9.lle.2ll)

6.0.1-1.500

r.2{5.25-1.46{

r.47t.46s,907

Non- Currcnt Asscts

Propcrtv. I)lant and Irquipmcnl

l-ibrary Iiroks

lntangihlc Assels ( tllt P Soliq arc)

Iliological Assels

Total Non- Currcnl Asscts

Total Asscls

I,IABII-ITIES

Current Liahilitics

Or erdrlr n ('ashhooks

Accounls Payablcs

Total (.lurrent Liahilities

Non-('urrent l,iabililies

Lonc 'l enn t-iahilities

T(xal Non- ('urr€nt l,iahililics

Total l,iabilities

NET ASSI]TS

Financcd By:

( apilal Rcscn c

Rcr enuc Resen'es ( Surphrs/( I)elicit))

Rcvaluation Rcscrve I Iinrcaliled
(iain)

'Ibral

2.093.677,95 l 2.030,721.264

1.62f.994 8.782.306

2tr.502,460 1 5.1 25,7(X)

5,391,000 5.62.1.500

2,t35,195,405 2,060.255,770

2J8EJ86,240 2379317.978

1,624,468

188.3e5,325

390,0r9,793

6.tt6l.l.l7

4l'1.816.902

424,738,O49

8II.959

456,447,?84

457.259.243

t1.206.2(,0

57,1.019.1{1.1

582.2.15.56.r

1.1..182.987

-.164.8ti4. t 60

t79.i67,117

000l.5ll.3-]l 6.131.328

0002.533.J.126.331,-128
390,019,793 424,73E,04e 457,259.243 584.768.896 185,700,475

1.w)66,A47 r,e54"6n!Le30 l!!ZM{4 r,].]rsel28,] !s!5&u1u

t.637,130,971 t.547.752.095 t,5?6,6l2.Oltta 1.525.211.0E8 1..107.111,1.660

1186,617,774\ (1s7,87tt.957) l.224,027.563\ (lsr.esl.80.l) (2ll,6lE.22tt)

547.913,250 564.1f6.19? 0 !.1

rJe8"166J47 r,q54i0e$0 1f,431!414 !4lr!Cr!] !.s$J4gg

b) Financial Performance Analysis

Financial analysis involves the use of financial statements. lts purpose is tt'r convc'y

an understanding of some financial aspects of a business firnr. Financial perforntancc

analysis includes analysis and interpretation of financial statements in strch a \\'ay that

it undertakes full diagnosis ofthe profitability and financial soundness o1'thc hlrsiness.

The University's financial analysis for the period ended 30'r'Jttne. 2020 is as lbllows;
)isiot: 1 L ntttr;ttr lrn l,tlnl liontfutrn*tit)n t)l i,(klt
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i) Statement of Financial Performance Analysis

A trend analysis on financial perfbrmance shows improvement in financial performance

where the University recorded a deficit of Kes. 49.1 million in 201512016 to a surplus
of Kes. 63.3 million in 201 8/19 FY. However, the University recorded a sharp decline
to a deficit of Kes. 45.6 million in 201912020 FY as a result of Universify closure due

to COVID-19 pandemic. Movement in surpluses/deficits for the past five (5) years is

as indicated below:

Total Surplus/(Deficit) (Kes. in Millions)

ao.o

6()-o

4()-o

2().o

o,o

(2o-ol

6.1.3

r Total slrrpluy(Oeficit) (Xes in
Milbm)

(60-o)

a) Revenue Analysis

ln the period under review, the University reported total revenue of Kes.
1,109,960.380 compared to Kes. 1.247,248,200 in similar period ended 30,h

June,20l9 in the last financial year. This was composed of government grants

at Kes. 863,236,998, grants & donations at Kes. 118,617, students'fees at Kes.
239,252,345 and other income at Kes. 7,352,420. Government grants were the
highest contributor of revenue at77 .llo/o ofthe total revenue. Revenue composition
percentages are as highlighted in the diagram below;

l'ision: 1 ( tltcstn lit' lbluLtl htn.r/innttot ol ,\tx rttr
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Figure l: Consolidated University Revenue
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A comparison of the culrent period ended 30'h June, 2020 with similar period ended

30,h June 2019 for the financial 201812019 indicates decline in all revenue categories

except for government grants. Government grants grew by 0.2% to Kes. 863.2 million

in20l9l20 from Kes. 861.9 Million in a similar period for 2018/19. On the other hand,

Students'fees also decreased by 30.6% to Kes. 239.3 Million, from Kes. 344.8 Million
in similar period last financial Year 2018/2019. Grants and donations also decreased

by 63.4% from Kes. 323,830 in 2018/19 to Kes. 118,617 in201912020. Other incomes

declined by 81. I % compared to a similar period 2017 12018. Cumulatively, all revenue

categories declined by ll%. The decline in revenue during the year was as a result of
University closure due to COVID-19 pandemic.

Revenue Comparison

Revenue Category

Government Grants ( Recunent)

Students'Fees
Grants & Donations
Other Incomes

Total Revenue

201912020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.

863.236,998
239,252,345

I 18,617

7,352,420
1,109,960,380

201812019
(30.06.201e)

Kes.

861,921,103

344,780,879

323,830
40,222,388

1,247,248,200

oh Change

o//o

0.2%
-30.6%

-63.4%
-81.7%

-tt.00

b) ExpenditureAnalysis

TheUniversityincurredatotal expenditureofKes. 1,156,5 14,098 atthecloseofperiod

ended 30'h June, 2020. Staff cost had the highest expenditure at Kes. 907.3 million

translating to 78.syo of the total recurrent expenditure. This was followed by academic

and research expenses at Kes. I 18.5 million (10.2%) while admininistrative expenses

l'isiur: ,,1 Linitrsit.t ./or I dlutd ?iln:linnaiilt ol &)( id\
Mission: Tt \er|c sluloll dil.l \o( irtr llttungh R'jt\oa'h. &hk\ltitilr. *'holur.thip, lrdiniiq, inilo\\ilion, oulrcuch qndco$ultoncv

@ Laikipia University is ISO 9001:2015 and ISO/IEC 27001:20l3Certified €i



Laikipia University, Annual Report & Financial Statements lor the Year Ended 3Oth June 2020

took 5.6Yo of the total expenditure. Depreciation on plant and equipment was Kes.
34.8 million (3%). Our depreciation policy stipulates full annual depreciation on all
asset in the year of acquisition with no depreciation charge in the year of disposal. The
University did not incur any expenditure on finance charge as there was no long term
liability to incur loan interests. Council expenditure for the year ended 30'h June, 2020
was Kes. ll.5 million translating to 1.\oh of the total expendture. Provision fbr bad &
doubtful debts decreased by Kes. 0.74 Million during the period translating to -0.06%
of the total expenditure. The total recurrent expenditure is as highlighted in the figure
below;

Figure 2: Consolidated University Expenditure

ltuffiEhc"
otDs

ffiEpE

r**itu

@la

sffi&E6ffi

adilial LG
f,*ardr

m2!f, NG
Gdrffi \ilo.rf,

fq*rf turid
f.frrEErE" tH;{rrEL

g?trr,

!r*qrrr5r

A comparison of recurrent expenditure for 201912020 FY with similar period ended
30'h June, 2019 indicates a slight decline in total expenditure by 2.2% from Kes.
l.l8 million in20l8l20l9 compared to Kes. l.l6 million inthe20t9l2020 Fy. This
comprises a minimal increase on staff costs by 3.lYo, repairs & maintenance expenses
by 9.0%, contracted services by 9.7% and council expenses by 20.5%. The increase
on council expenses from Kes. 9.5 million in 201812019 to Kes. I 1 .5 million was as a
result of more nteetings held during the period to deliberate on University matter and
also participation of Council members in witnessing the achievements by the University
during the year. Depreciation charge also increasedby 1329% from Kes.l4.9 million
in 2018/2019 l'-Y to Kes. 34.8 million in201912020 FY as a result of assets revaluation
conductr.:d at the end of 201812019 FY increasing value of assets by over Kes. 500
million.
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On the other hand, there were decline of expenditure on several items due to reduced

activities in operations after the University was closed due to (-OVID-19 pandemic.

Administrative expenses reduced by 11.4% from Kes. 73.7 million in 201812019 to

Kes. 65.3 million in 201912020 FY, academic and research by 34.6'h and Students

welfare by 38.0%. The decrease on provision for bad debts by 70.3o/o was as a result

of decrease in receivables. The University did not report any loss on disposal/ de-

recognition during the year compared to Kes. 1.49 million in the last financial year. This

comparison is as highlighted below;

Recurrent Expenditure Comparison

Expenditure Category

StAffCOStS

Administrative Expenses

Repairs & Maintenance

Contracted Services

Academic & Research Expenses

Students Welfare

Council Expenses

Depreciation
Provision for Bad Debts

Loss on Disposal/De-recognition
Total

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.
907,330,144

65,271,322

8,281,891

2,927,642
118,445,906

9,740,078
11,478,799

34,782,057
(739,826)

0

1,156,518r012

2018t2019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.

880,055,660

73,699,07 |

7,595,057

2,667,644

181,082,677

14,096,t33
9,522,411

14,933,740
(2,490,0s2)

|,492,763
1,182,655,105

o/o Change

o//o

3.1%
-fi.4%

9.0%
9.7%

-34.6%
-38.0%

20.5%

132.9%
-703%

-100.0%
-2.2yo

c) UniversitySurplus/(Deficit)

The University reported a cumulative deficit of Kes. 45,622,359 in the financial year

ended 30'h June, 2020. Included in total deficit is Kes. 46,557,632 from University

operations, a profit of Kes. 11,666 from Farm operations and Kes. 923,607 from

Catering Department operations. Deficits and surpluses are as highlighted in the figure

below:
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Figure 3: Total Surplus/(Deficits)
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ii) Statement of Financial Position

An analysis on the staternent of financial position for the past 5 years shows that the
University Net Assets have increased from Kes. I .085 billion in 20l5l16 to Kes. I .998

billion as at 30'r' June,2020. An analysis Financial Position items is as follows;

a. University Assets Analysis

In order to achieve the objective of improving teaching and learning, the Universit;
has invested in physical facilities. This is shown by consistent increase in total
asset from Kes. L47 billion in20l5ll6 fiscal year to Kes.2.39 billion in 2019/2020
fiscal year. 1'his represents 62oh increase since 2015/16. The high increase from
Kes.l .76 billion in 20171201tl to Kes.2.379 billion in201812019 was as a result of
upward assets revaluation conducted in May 2019. The trend is as shown below;

Figure 4: University Assets
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b. University LiabilitiesAnalysis

On the other hand, a trend analysis on University liabilities indicates decreasing

trend on University liabilities for the past five years. Total liabilities stood at

Kes. 390.02 Million as at 30th lune,2020. Decreasing trend on liabilities over the

years is as a result of University commitment to pay outstanding debts that had

accumulated over the years due to shortage of funds. The University has been

clearing debts to suppliers and part time lecturers though at a slow pace due to

limited resources. Trend analysis on University liabilities is as analyzed below;

Figure 5: University Liabilities
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c. Ratio Analysis

The University's ratio analysis indicates a weaker liquidity of 65'h in 201912020

financial year compared to 760/o in 201812019 financial year. An ideal position

should have a liquidity ratio 2:l and a quick ratio of l: l. Due to the weak liquidity
ratios, the University is not able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

Currently, the University can only be able to meet about 600/o of its financial

obligations compared to 72oA in the 2018/19 financial year as indicated by the

quick ratio. This has led to high level of payables to suppliers of goods & services

and part-time teaching cost. Ratio analysis is as shown below;
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@ 
Laikipia University is ISO 9fi)I:2015 and ISO/IEC 27001:20l3CertifieA 4



Laikipia University. Annual Report & [;inancial Statemcnts lirr the Year lrrrded 3Oth .lune 2020

Balance Sheet Ratio Analysis

Item
Assets

Current Assets (CA)
Fixed Assets (FA)
Total Assets

Liabilities
Current Liabilities (CL)
Long-term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Inventory

Liquidity Ratio (CA/CL)

Quick Ratio (CA- lnventory)/Cl))
Working Capital Changes (lncrease/Decrease
in Working Capital)

Summary of Cash flows

Cash flow
Net Operating cash-fl ows
Investing Activities
Financing Activities
Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

19,392,081 t7,676,910

0.65 0.76

0.60

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.
2s3, r 90,835

2,135,195,405
2388J86,240

2018t2019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.
319,092,208

2,060,255,770
2379347,978

t

388,395,325
0

388J9sJ2s

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

42,124,432
( 109,955,191)

89,378,876
21,549,117

4t't,876,902
0

417,876,902

20t8t2019
(30.06.20r9)

(r6,8s8,r r4)
(73,084,322)

21,140,007
(68,802,429)

(

o.72

52,964,734 (96,629J00)

iii) Statement of Cash Flow

The statement of cash flows shows reconciliation between the opening and closing cash

balances. The reconciling items are classified under cash generated from operations,

investing and financing activities. Cash flows from the various activities for the year

cnded 30'h June.2020 are as summarized below'

The University generated net cash inflows from operation of Kes. 42.12 million in

2019/2020 compared to Kes. ( 16.86) million in 201812019 financial year. On investing
activities, the University used Kes. 109.96 million as at the end of 30'h June,2020
compared to Kes. 73.08 million in similar period of last financial year. The current
investing expenditure includes Kes. 88.59 million on the ongoing capital projects

and Kes. 27.87 million on purchase of plant and equipment. Plant and Equipment
l'ision: ,,1 I lni\\'r.\ity l(il' llilntl lirutslinnattort rl ,\tt tLtt
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includes a motor vehicle at Kes.3.l million, LAN extension at Kes.6.4 million and

additional cost on acquisition of an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software at

Kes. 13.26 million. The University reported net financing cash-flows of Kes. 89.38

million compared to Kes. 2l.l million in last financial year. This included Kes. 89.38

million GoK capitation disbursed by the government through the Ministry of Education

for funding of capital projects during the year. The cash flow results are graphically

presented as shown in the following figure;

Figure 6: Cash-flows

iv) Statement of Changes in Reserves

Laikipia University maintains three types of reserves, i.e. capital, revenue and

revaluation reseryes. The total reserves for the year ended 30'h June, 2020 was Kes. I .998

billion compared to Kes. I.955 billion in last financial year. Total Reserves comprised

of capital reserves at Kes. 1,637, I 30,97 I in 2019 120 compared to Kes. 1,547,7 52.095 in

last financial year. The University reported revenue reserves of Kes. (186,677,774) in

201912020 compared to Kes. (157.878,957) in the 2019l2Dl9 financial year. Included in

reserves during the year was revaluation reserves at Kes. 564,736.792 in 2019/2020 FY

compared to Kes.564,736.792 in 201812019 FY. The reduction in revaluation reserve

was as a result of transfer of Kes. 16.8 million during the year to revenue reserve for

revaluation gain amortization. An analysis of reserves for 2019/2020 financial year was

as indicated below;
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Figure 7: Reserves

Section B: Compliance with Statutory Requirements

Section 83 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012, requires that an Accounting
Officer for a National Government owned Entity to prepare a report for each quarter of
the financial year in respect of the entity. Laikipia University complies with statutory
requirements on submission of reports to the Ministry of Education, the National
Treasury & Planning and Kenya National Audit Office.

Section C: Key Projects and Investment Decisions

The University is currently in the process of upgrading to a state of the art University.
The ongoing development projects are Tuition Blocks, Library and Administration
Block and Science Laboratories among others.

Section D: Major Risks Facing Laikipia University

The University's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including credit
and liquidity risks. The University's overall risk management programme focuses on
unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimize the

potential adverse effects of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels
of risk.

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the University. The University's credit risk is primarily
attributable to its receivables.
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This refers to the risk of institution's inability to meet its obligations as they fall due.

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the University
Management Board, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management

framework for the management of the University's short, medium and long-term

funding and liquidity management requirements. The University manages liquidity risk
by maintaining banking facilities and through continuous monitoring of lbrecasts and

actual cash flows.

Section E: Material Arrears in Statutory/Financial Obligations

Pending bills at the close of financial year ended 30'h June, 2020, amounted to Kes.

388,395,325. This includes part time teaching cost at Kes. 131.1 million, salary and

deductions payable at Kes. 6.77 million, Pension fund accruing at Kes. 25.77 million
and KRA taxes payable at Kes. 53.66 million. The University is committed to clearing
pending bills once financial performance stabilizes.

Section F: Financial Probity and Serious Governance Issues

The University has no financial probity and governance issues.
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ophbn.

l(rrAudthlr
t(.y rrn r$|t .rt tlr mti.f nf. h mV f*rtonl lfgnrfit -gl d nil
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Amount
Rrlrdng to

CorEultrnoy or
CorrY.rl.0orr

15,U7.W)02Lncn . Th{lnr

L.b

Bullling

5

ln llt clrcrrndtncrr. Men4iarnt ws n brrrch of hr

3,O D.aryld Drr.aogm.nt rnd lnplomotrLgoo - Enfrprbo RrourG. Ptlrrlng
(ERP) lafnrrn

Thr unirr[ty Jtlr'rd lnto r cslt rcl ior lhc danrlopm.nl oa sn Enbrprir Rao|'a
Plrlnang (ERP) ryrrrn .t . conlrlcl 6rt o, l(ofit. 1a,ote,2fi). Thc irplgnantdbn prrlod
v9lr lro-m 22 liil, 2012 b 12 lfiy,20t3 Tho Urn,tnlry prrl Fo1n.0,329'2@ tt
mr3/itol, fulEiil !,t.r st*:tr wf, gze* or oonlrtc{.lsYt .nd fr |(tdliofl.l Kth..64.0fi
rt th. fin.ns.tycuiOnnOlT. fh. poJcclwt.tlll lrmmpbb .3 rt t0 Junc, 2020 sd
tha Unh,u[lty fr.n gdnglt h.d brmiril.d lho csrtmal.

ln lhO flrCwnrl1o.t, valr, for moncy hl. not bon rerlictl gn ttrc ergordiltlt oa

l(rha.9I13,2OO rc lrr hcu,rcd ln rl.e.ct oath. ERP ro{hsen3

Thc rudl w.. onduaod tn acaqdiloc e,Xh l88Al aOoO. T}! rtanded '!guh!r 
thrt I

cdnely rr,{h dhhal rqulrrnf'rtr rnd plrn erd porfonn thr etdit to ootlh ttarrlrEr
*qh-rrlr*rrr thr mtitlbr, firuri.l lnftttcllml rnd lnfqnreltqr ]t{bctcd lr tlr
llnerErl ]]rb|n..lt3 r,c n cqnpln6. ln fI m.t d.l E.p.ct . wilh tl. anthoritic tfial
gDrt n lham. I ballr,l ol.t rtc eudl arrilcnoe I heto obtdncd ir uficicnt rd rpgrs'Ilc
to Fovid. r b.rl.iotmy oondmbn

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERI{AL COMTROLA. RlgI( MANAGEMGiIT
AND@VERNANCE

Co.rGhrlon

Ar loqulrtd by 8ec{bn (1X., ol tfi. RbIc Audlt Act. 2013. bo.d qr ,E lrdt
prE(krr- pdtomreO. @Pl ht tho mlltor dc.crtad ln |ha b.!b !q urdulbn on

imraivcrul ol lrfcrnol Contolr. Rbk fiirnrgornot end Gornreno t.din d my
rport I Gor{lrm thrt noilring.ar l.. €rnc to my llactbn b c|tlL ma b ba||etr Ola
narnJ conbElo, illr rn.]ngernrot srd ovoill gcvcmanc wolc rct cficcilro-

,A.t tt,* {l*n*Ijlw.t u tz$+a ll*rmrr fu ttt ls t*l tlt /n m'O

),ision: l I nittrtit.t fut Iililil'li1ttt.\|oriltttitrt t)I \\itIt

t

17,791,zfi
CoGr.ct Orl,

11

Corf.Gt
Arnourf

117,l!25,0742011no12

$mmlT 251,71t,Vfi 93,328,9r9.64

4.$6'6EE23,83r,575
14,175,U10,79r5,r40,0601n1no1a
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Xbet Controb Ovtr Prpol frnrgnrr.rrt

Rcvrwd$r ttr*rnry'r Ent am. Rrourcc phmlne (ERp) r1l(l ol{cr Fr! orh lqtho.mmgrrf,* of prymt h lolara0te hrrdd -yerr niulrrl ttlmn aontolwrlmautlriollqwr:
I An lltir of pryrdt dm h !t p.rtod S*tcmr. ZOti b Jrmr, ZO1C rtrr|.(tt|lt . bt t ot rch..0t7.aoa.05 nrr pld ino om b..* rmrrt *inn tr rhrdby ra,lrd ddl mrrnbrn lunle.mfit du ,rol proiltda alpaanatlol3 andttm.rmcl. I,ilro.Lrng tha prlmaot orhcrebdcc mour *rg5 iccotrd.

il' R vaw o, r'i pry,or ryrhn 0rrdrd hd( of aaerrgen ol duro uilra
cqrp.Em[.lrg tho nrg?rty oa dm n Urc .ytt m rhc eat/fd admanEmr urrgrolpfi plyroll altLrm lr.d tha r{fro.tf ior d6 .lt}r. FCA rpgrorth t md t.
ryrol procc*ro np rror epeovrl. qLtrn dilrlrrmr m5 rno aur rrtrr,

rnd p.yrltgu.dne Thr eyrtrn.cqrdty rrd drtr kfiery trtr
thcllfo.c cdngfoflrEad rrE urrtrb.!

Brrh brCooclrfon

Thc rudtrrr conductld h mdrncrwlth lssAt 2sts rnd tsgAl ass rh. drnd.drrqtit trrt I prn rnd prdom tr. ildt b obtdn mruirnol rbou firrhlr r{llobvrpror-o]r6 .nd tysbrnt of lnlrnal 6obol. 7|t runrgunrrt and g|oylnancc r,ar.
acrattne dr.dlt,r. n all rn latll crprcir I brbvr tra rrr ruada,rdrno I trrvr
ottrhrd t edllclrnt tttl.pprprtrtr b provitr. bBi htmymndrrrbn

irpomlblldc ot hnrgnnrnt rnd fhor Chrrgid rilh Covrrarrp
Mrnrgrrrnl b nrporrDb Gr lh. pnprrrton rxl ltr ccxflhton d lhar nnftdal
.trtrmmill h rccordrncrwlth lrtmdhnrl htlc $ocbr Amrntllg gLtnflrr (AEud
B..L) rnd lor firrrtrhrine rffrcthn ntrnrd co.troa r Hlrg;rrr d.bmritr bn al.ry m rnrbh !r prgrrrtbn of fitldd $rtln rt| [rr atl tl. ftun mabrbl
mf,$.brrr.nt u,halh.r o|J.to ttxd ot am)l nd lorlr aaaamurtd thre,locilY.ntt
oa lrlhrnal @rfd. .hk rnanag.nmt tnd gowrnencr,

ln Frp.me ulQ ffn nclal..tr .Bmnlsr ltlrrqmrurl b ltrpomtb for nanrg houdrr.r.[y'. .umy to oorffrLn to 3u.hrr rrvlal drdo.lng. er rpgrabl, mitindq! ro rurrrhel}ly ol rrvla rrrd udng rh. Tpro.bh orr o iirerntng untor
thr Menegernnl a. ,r[rr ol thr tnintlon lo frnlnrn thr Uninnlly or b oE
ogrtrtlonr.

llrnqrnrt I rho nrporrrbb br thr tubrnhJoa of thr {frrnoad rltbmoB b thrAtEltor€mrd h .Gar{nc wltlr th. orstirom ol g.cthn 4? ol lh. pra[c Am
Ad, e015.

ln addluon b ort T..pon.tbtltty fo? sta p?.gmr0cr .rld p{raantrum ol tha lhrnoarlrltEn ntr d.ecr-.d tor, ilrnrgrmrtt lr rra rwonrur hr rmurirg lhn tr..otltnt*r. ltnl)cld tt m.ctloor nd hto.mrlloo r{hrLd ln r|. lh.naial ufrnrrir erl

&ir, .f fa. .{d}r.{ianreror Lorl+rrr l.,htwrr\r..lt* du trrr **l f0.lrrq tfDO

I isiotr: I I ttt\t t \tt\ lt)t' l,tltr,,l lr,n:/,riltLtrt.)i t)l \ttL tt tt

S 1"i1;pia University is ISO 9001:2015 and ISO/IEC 2700122013a;.;; 
@



Laikipia University, Annual Report & Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30th June 2020

Ir al|frD {l lr rlsb *Ut gnn lr\ rl H Ffo ilrErs. !.
#hn-.lr-r.
rtr. .r,ld Ir Snrrn rt .Til b onl-lS tr rl'rrilyl hHl
rf.fr FCr rlnff lr dr.llrrr C ln lhflrr mc5| qbn
r- drr rHl rr ctE, rq-rilr erttc E *sh FC
d fir L h rb b fr B rh L rAdfrh ltr b
frli.,r rf il inrga.ril. rd rIfi lr rfiry d -cEr C fr
uU.irffi.
fffro-illE*fbtfl
fb ril {.m r b frt rrrt nrrr &f fl: lr ffil

r r ff lf, htsn r5l rffIrrrf ffr Cr Stra a rE
ia b h. .lt 

--t 
rllrf H Hrb rff oplSa I ffi -t tr piEr

d !.Gt!r rlldt Prtillilfcl &t3 rn rn!.r- tFl r AEr.-r
fra z,,r.llcl. cu-lEr lut nnn r. ltD H C rrrn !t
b d r g-r1rrlr H m rt utfl h drr -t ltSAt - -; 

dG
. i.id- ttlrrr rn *nffr I db. lElirf ar rI lul tra
c rru fl ft Gotd i5 I. Ilmrl, a Ir ll. Ilf,3-. nry caf
r-tu, t rf.ol. b rarn lr su$ t&r d tll IIl ol h f
dtf,.hdrhrr
Ir frr 5t r-dlr frrd tIlrnt . !..llllrD f- l ;frd rll
Dtrtd 5r!I.r. a-it.hf fflr. lr d rrll rre6r h ff.
hrrf rif-tsr fn ffir rfrCa rrLllt llr. rr Ir
3g4553-r h rauh f Crn ln ra il FtrEE - # Il
t1itfr rr. h ErIDflr Ir futrgr CArt- ?2!Q df. Cr-Er
ri rlrl h d tfdt h GuPIE Sr frlf ZfffD d b GoIlEl

Rar. h FrrI d elhfU h. ril dh ffil tlErtr d rlf d
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30T'i JUNE, 2O2O

Capital Revenue Revaluation
Reserve Reserve Reserve

Kes. Kes. Kes.

1,526,612,088 (224.027,563) 0

Total
Reserves

Kes.

1,302,584,524

Details

2018t2019

As at I st July, 2018

Covernment Development
Grants

Revaluation Gain during the

year

Excess Depreciation on

Revaluation

Funds used during the year

Total Surplus/(Deficit)

As at 30th June,20l9

Details
2019t2020
As at lst July, 2019

Government Der elopment
Grants

Revaluation Gain during the
year

Excess Depreciation on

Revaluation Gain

Funds used during the year

Total Surplus/( Defi cit)
As at 30th June, 2020

21,t40,007 0 o 2t,140,007

0

0 2,803,924 (2,803,924)

000
0 63.344.683 0

1,s47,752,095 (157,878,957) 564,736,792

0 567,540,7 t6 567,s40,7 t6

0

0

63,344,683

1,954,609,930

Capital
Reserve

Kes.

I ,547 ,7 52,095

Revenue Revaluation
Reserve Reserve

Kes. Kes.

( 157,878,957) 564,736,792

Total
Reserves

Kes.

1.954,609,930

89,378,876

0

0 16,823,5 42 (16,823,s42)

000
0 (45,622,3s9\ 0

1,637,130,97 I (186,677,77 4) 547,913,250

0 0 8e,378,876

0 0

0

0

(45,622,3se)

1,998,366,447

lititttt: .l I nt\-t1\ttt /i)r lilutl ltdtt\l)rDktttott rtl.\tt iLr.t
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STATEMENT OF CASHFLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE,2O2O

Details Notes Page

Operating Activities:
Surplus/Deficit

Gain on Disposal of Assets

Adj ustment fbr Depreciation
Operating surplus before working capital changes

Changes in Working Capital
Increase/Decrease in Receivables 29 (i) 94

Increase/Decrease in lnventories 29 (ii) 94

Increase/Decrease in Payables 29 (iii) 94

Increase/Decrease in Biological Assets 29 (iv) 94
Net changes in Working Capital
Net cash generated from operating
Activities
Cash flows from Investing Activities
Purchase ofNon-CurrentAssets 30 95

Work in Progress 31 96

Adjustment for Expensed Work in Progress

Proceeds from sale of Non-Current Assets

Net cash used in investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Government Development Grants

Proceeds from Long Term Liabilities
Repayments of Long Term borrowings
Net cash generated from Financing
Activities
Increase/(decrease) in cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the
Year

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the
period

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.
(45,622,3s9)

34,782,057

(10,840,302)

2018t2019
(30.06.20r9)

Kes.

63,344,683

t.492.763

t4.933.740

79,771,186

83,927,982
(1 ,7ls.t71)

(29,48t,s76)

233,500

52,964,734

(54,545.699)
(3,e 1e,8 r e)

(38,570,382)

406,600
(96,629,300)

(34.s27,933)

(38,595,889)

42,124,432 (16,959,114)

(27,873,410)

(88,590,540)

6,508,760

(109,955,191)
39,500

(73,084,322)

89,378,876 21.140,007

89,378,876

21,548,n7

15,43r,743

36,979,960

21,140,007

(68,802,429)

84,234,173

15,431,743

Reconciliation of Cash & cash Equivalents 201912020 201812019
(30.05.2020) (30.06.201e)

Cash & Cash Equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement 36,979,860 15,431,743
ADD: OverdrawnAccounts 1,624,468 6,861,14i
Cash & Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet 38,604,328 22,292,890

lision: 1 ['ttttt'rtttt l,,r l,tlntl ]ittt:lrtttrtt,tt tl .\rt tttt

@ Laikipia University is ISO 9fi)l:2015 and ISO/IEC 2700122013 Certified @



Laikipia University, Annual Report & Financial Statcnrents itrr the Year Endcd 3Oth June 2020

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE,2O2O
Actual on

Virement Revlsed

DETAILS

REVENUE
(iovemment Grants ( Recurent)

Grants & Donations

Students' Fees

Other Incomes

Total

EXPENDITURE

Stalf Costs

Administrative Expcnses

Repairs & Maintenance Expcnses

Contracted Services

Academic & Research Expenses

Students Wellhre

Council Expenses

Finance Charge

Depreciation

Provision fbr Ilad Dcbts

Total

C)peraling Deficit

Other Service Units

Sales

Fam

Catering

Total Sales

Expenses

F'am

Catering

Total Expenses

Total Profit/Loss for Service Units

Total Surplus/(Defi cit)

ADD: Other Receipts (Non P&L)

Govemmcnt Grants ( Clapital)

Receipts fiom Debtors

LESS: Other Payments (Non P&L)

Plant & Equipmcnt

Capital Devclopmcnt

Dcbt Management

Approved
Budget

2019t2020

Kes.

863,236,998

2,500,000

39',1,5t2,750

I 8.296,853

1,281,546,601

2019t2020

Kes.

0

(2,t'72,'7391

(92.341n39 )

(2,652,929)

(97,171,5O7)

201912020

Kes.

863,236,998

327,26t

305,166,9r r

15,643,924

I,184,375,094

(Adjustments) Budget
Comparable Performance

Basis Dlflerence
201912020 201912020 Not€s

Kes. Kes.

863.236,998 0

il 8,61 7 (208,644)

239,2s2,34s (6s,9t4,566) (i)
'7,3s2,420 (8,291,s04) (ii)

I,109,960,380 (14,4t4,714)

9l 5,490,801

77,546,000

6,700,000

8,543,000

I 32,485,000

14,900,000

I I,000,000

0

26,500.000

4,500,000

I,197,664,80r

83,881,800

(6,000,000)

(8,415,939)

I,000,000

(s,391,618)

( I l,l 59.881)

(5,537,939)

848,52s

0

0

0

(34,656,854)

(62,5r 4,653)

(3,500,000)

I ,220,910

(2,279,090)

(s00,000)

(500,000)

( l,000,000)

(r,279,090)

(63,793,743)

909,490,801

69, I 30,06 I

7,700,000

3,1 51,382

tzt,325,|'t
9,362,061

I I,848,525

0

26,500,000

4,500,000

I,163,007,9d7

21,367,147

907,330, I 44

65,27 |322

8,28 I,89 I

2,921,642

r l rJ,445,906

8.740.078

I I,47{i,799

0

34,'.782,057

(739,826)

r, I 56,51 8,01 2

(46,ss7,632)

2,160,657

3,858,739

(s81,891)

223,740

2,8't9,2n

621,984

369,726

0

(8,282,0s7)

s,239,826

6,4E9,936

167,924,778)

(iv)

(v)

(vi )

I 0,000,000

7,000,000

17,000,000

7,000,000

6,000,000

13,000,000

4,000,000

87,881,800

6,500,000

8,220,9t0

14,720,910

6,500,000

5,500,000

12,000,000

2,720,910

24,0EE,057

t,649,890

5 5 tg 754

1,189,642

t,6311,224

4,616,t45

6,2s4,369

935,273

(45,622,359)

(4,850,1 l0) (vii)

(2,681,158) (viii)

(7,531,268)

4,861,1'16

883,855

s.745,631

(1,78s,637)

(69,7r0,416)

252,300,000

77,798,908

330,098,908

( 1 62,92 1 ,1 24)

17,052,672

(l 45,868,452)

89,378,8?6

94,85 1,580

184,230,456

34,000,000

9l,012,648

83,305,865

208,3t8,513

(0)

89.1 7li.876

ti7.t0l,t63
176.480,039

2'.7,8'73,4t0

88,590,540

l l 1,755,869

230,2r9,819

(99,362,r39)

0

(7,750,417) (ix)

(7,7s0,417)

6,126.590 (x)

2,422,108 (xi)

(30,450,004) (xii)

(2r,901,306)

(99J62,139)

34,000,000

263,810,278 (t72,19-7,630)

t20,170,430 (36,864,565)

4t7,980,708 (209,662,195)

(0) 0

yision: .4 ['ntvt'itr kr' l,ltutl Tr,utli nttttr] ttl.\tIt.tr
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO STATEMENT OF COMPARISON
OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

IPSAS 24 requires disclosure of an explanation of the reasons for material differences
between the budget and actual amounts. During the year under review, there were
performance differences between the actual and budgeted amounts which are explained
as follows:

Students Fees-The variance of Kes. 65.9 million on this item was as a result of
University closure due to COVID -19 pandernic affecting the second semester of
201912020 FY.

Other Incomes - The University reported a negative variance of Kes. 8.29 million
on other income as a result of low activity in the fourth quarter and University
closure.

iii. Administrative Expenses -As indicated in note (i) & (ii) above, the University was
closed prematurely in March 2020 resulting to low activities during the period.

iv. Academic & Research Expenses - The variance on this expenditure was because
the students'were out of session as a result of University closure due to COVI-19.

v. Depreciation - The University depreciation policy is to assign full year depreciation
on University asset. The University had budgeted a lower figure of depreciation
based on 201812019 which was reported at Kes. 14 million. However, the value
of assets increased on revaluation at the end of 201812019 FY, hence increasing
depreciation amount.

vi. Bad Debts Provision - The University Policy is to make a general provision of 10o/o

on all receivables. The change in provision for bad & doubtful debts decreased
by Kes. 739,826 as a result of decrease in receivables leading to a performance
difference of Kes. 5,270,804.

vii. Farm Sales - The University made huge investment to revitalize farm during.
This may take some time before achieving return on investment and that's why
we recorded a variance in the current financial year. The situation is expected to
improve in future upon crop harvesting.

viii. Catering Sales- The University Canteen depends on students and staff as the
customers who were out of session due to University closure,

ix. Receipts from Debtors - The University did not receive the anticipated receipts
especially from students'fee balances after the University closed indefinitely due
to COVID-19 pandemic.

)ition: .l I rntrtttr /o liiluttl ltrtttfutnnilion t'/,\,. itt\'
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x. Purchase of Plant & Equipment - The University did not achieve the targeted

purchase of additional assets due to shortage of funds.

xi. Capital Development- The variance on this line item was as a result of delay by

contractors on the projects and therefore there were no certificates to claim from
the Ministry of Education.

xii. Debt Management - Debt management surpassed the revised budget by Kes. 30.5

million. This was as a result of under-budgeting based on anticipated resources

during the year.

llsion: A l]nircrsit.t'.lir Vulued Trun$irmotion ol Socielt
Mission: Ttt yne shden6 and.\o(.iefi thnugh reseon,h. edu.utkrn,.scholurship. lruiniilg, inno|ulion. oirot'h und crnsilanc.t'
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Laikipia University, Annual Report & Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30th June 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE, 2O2O

l. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The entity's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and
comply with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) Accrual.
The financial statements are presented in Kenya shillings, which is the functional
and reporting currency of the University. The accounting policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis ofhistorical cost, unless
stated otherwise. The cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method.
The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a. Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for
the sale of services in the ordinary course of the University's activities. Revenue is

shown net of rebates and discounts. The University recognizes revenue when the

amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the University and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the University's activities as described below. The University bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement. Revenue has been
accounted for using the accrual concept of accounting. Income is recognized in the
period in which it is earned. The revenue recognition is as follows:

D Revenue from non-exchange transactions
* Government Grants
Government grants are recognized as income in the period when received. Accrued
Government grant is recognized only when there is a reasonable assurance that the
entity will comply with any condition attached to the grant and that the grant will
be received

* Grants & Donations
Grants and donations in form of research grants and donations from Constituency
Development Funds (CDFs) are recognized as income in the period it is received.
The entity does not accrue un-received grants and donations unless there is a

reasonable assurance to receive the funds.
l'ision: .1 Lininrwtr.fu)r lbhcd Truntfirmotirn tl Stx ity
Mission: Trt *rr t \lutlents dnd t()( i(n thn*gh rcscux h. &Ju( utk)n, sthlur:hip. tldining, innoluti)n. rntn'uch arul
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions
* Tirition and Fees

Revenue from tuition and fees are recognized prorata over the relevant period.

The entity applies accrual concept in relation to tuition and fees receivable in a

particular year. Revenue from tuition fees are accounted for over the period in
which they relate. Fees paid in advance are carried forward under trade and other

payables.

* Other incomes

Revenues from other sources are recognized when the amount of revenue can be

measured reliably. Income from campuses is treated the same way tuition and fees

are treated.

b. Budget Information
IPSAS 24 requires a comparison of budget amounts and the actual amounts arising

from execution of the budget to be included in the financial statements of entities

which are required to, or elect to, make publicly available their approved budget(s)

and for which they are, therefore, held publicly accountable. Compliance with
the requirements of this standard ensures that public sector entities discharge

their accountability obligations and enhance the transparency of their financial

statements by demonstrating compliance with the approved budget(s) for which
they are held publicly accountable and, where the budget(s) and the financial

statements are prepared on the same basis, their financial performance in achieving

the budgeted results. The Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts

forms part of our financial statements for the year ended 30'h June, 2020.

c. Reserves

Laikipia University maintains three types of reserves as indicated on the Statement

ofchanges in reserves ofthe financial statements. The reserves are capital, revenue

and revaluation reseryes. During the financial year under review, the University
had totaf reseryes of Kes. 1,998,366,447

Wsion: ,4 L'ni*'rsih /ir' lhlucd Trutntlormatan o/ SoL icn
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d. Provisions
Provisions are recogrlized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result ofa past event, it is probable that an outflow ofresources
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the

obligation and a reliable estinrate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,

under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate

asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expensc relating to
any provision is presented in the statement of financial perfbrmance net of any

reimbursement.

.:. Contingentliabilities
The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any

contingencies in the notes to the financial statemcnts, unless the possibility of an

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

* Contingent assets

The Entity does not recognize a contingent asset. but discloses details ofa possible

asset whose existence is contingent on the occurrencc or non-occurrence of one

or more uncertain flture events not wholly within the control of the Entity in the

notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets are assessed continually to

ensure that developments are appropriately reflectcd in the financial statements.

lf it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service

potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the

related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the period in which
the change occurs.

e. Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower ofcost or net realizable value. Costs ofissues are

calculated using 'First in First Out'(FIFO) rnethod. Net realizable value represents

the estimated selling price less any estimatcd cost of disposal. Inventories are

recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the

ordinary course of operations of the University.

f. Property, Plant and Equipment
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) l7 stipulates that an

entity shall choose either the cost modcl or the revaluation model as its accounting
policy and shall apply that policy to an entire class of property, plant and equipment.

l ision: I I ntLr:trr lrtr lilual lhntl'rnntt!)n ti.\ttt(tr
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

In cost model, after recognition as an asset, an item of property, plant and equipment

shall be carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated

impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable

to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a

separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits

associated with the item will flow to the University and the cost of the item can

be measured reliably. The canying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

Under revaluation model after recognition as an asset, an item of property,

plant and equipment whose fair value can be measured reliably shall be carried

at a revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of the revaluation less any

subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. Revaluations shall be made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the

carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined

using fair value at the reporting date.

The difference between the cost model and the revaluation model is that the

revaluation model allows both downward and upward adjustment in value of an

asset while cost model allows only downward adjustment due to impairment loss.

Upward revaluation is not considered a normal gain and is not recorded in income

statement rather it is directly credited to reserves account called revaluation surplus.

Revaluation surplus holds all the upward revaluations of a company's assets until
those assets are disposed-off

The standard allows revision of estimated useful life which is accounted for
prospectively. The change in the estimate is reported in the current and prospective

periods. Previously reported statements and opening balances do not need to be

adjusted to reflect the change in the useful life estimate. The reasons prior periods

don't need to be restated are as follows:

Change in the useful Iife estimate does not represent an accounting error.

Estimate changes are an inherent and continual part of the estimation process

Vision: .1 ('t1ir'(!-.\it\' lor lilut'el Trunt/irmttit)t1 t)l S).i.lt-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30'h June, 2020

The University revalued all assets at the close of 201812019 financial year. Basic

calculation process of depreciation remains unchanged between revaluation model

or cost model. Under cost model depreciation is calculated on the basis of cost less

residual value over the useful life of asset. Under revaluation model depreciation is
calculated on the basis of revalued amount less residual value overthe remaining

useful life. Under both models depreciation for the period is charged in profit or
loss account.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated

depreciation at the date of the revaluation is treated in one of the following ways:

* Restate accunrulated depreciation proportionately with the change in the gross

carrying amount of the asset (so that the carrying amount of the asset after
revaluation equals its revalued amount); or

* Eliminate the accumulated depreciation against the gross carrying amount of
the asset (lAS l6 par. 35).

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an infinite life. Depreciation on

other property is charged so as to write off the assets during the estimated useful

life, using the straight line method. Assets acquired during the year will attract full
year depreciation while assets disposed during the year will not be charged the

depreciation.

The annual depreciation rates used are as follows:-

Buildings
Office Equipment

Furniture & Fittings
Plant, Machinery & Tractors

Motor Vehicles & Motor Bikes

Computer & Accessories -

Library Books

25%
20%
12.5%

t0%
25%

20%
20%

Reserves transfer

The depreciation charge on the revalued asset will be different to the depreciation
that would have been charged based on the historical cost ofthe asset. As a result

of this, IAS 16 permits a transfer to be made of an amount equal to the excess

depreciation from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings.
I isiut : . I [.' n i \ (, r \ I | \ h ) t I i I tt, d 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

Disposal of Assets

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the

carrying amount and are included in the income statement. When revalued assets

are sold, the amounts included in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are

transferred to retained earnings.

g. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their l'air value at the

date of the exchange. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at

cost less any accumulated amorlization and accumulated impairment losses. Costs

associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognized as an

expense as incurred. Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the

basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. These

costs are amortized on the basis of the expected useful lives. Software is amortized

on a straight line basis over the expected/estimated useful lit'e. The University

amortizes intangible assets at a rate of 20Yo per year.

h. Biological Assets

Livestock are valued at the prevailing market rates.

Crops are valued at fair value less estimated point of sale costs. Itrormula for

calculating the value of crops in the field is as follows:

vc=!)@E
MP

Where:

Vc - Value of crop YP - Yield Potential of thc crop

D - Age in Days SP - Selling Price per 90-Kg Bag

A - Area in Acres MP - Maturity Period

i. Related Parties

The Entityregardsarelatedpartyasaperson oran entitywith the abilitytoexertcotrtrol

individuallyorjointly, orto exercise significant influence overthe entity. orviceversa.

|'isiur: .1 I;niyt,r.\,tI l.il laIilL\lTtun.\/i)rDkilit), t)/ Sta-id\
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

Members of the University Management Board (UMB) are regarded as related
parties and comprise of the Vice Chancellor, Deputy Vice Chancellor (AF&P),
Deputy Vice Chancellor (ARSA), Registrar (Administration & Human Capital),
Registrar (Academic Aflairs) and Finance Officer. Their remuneration in terms of
emoluments during the year under review was as tbllor.l,s;

University Management Board
Remuneration

Vice-Chancellor
Deputy Vice-Chancellor - ARSA
Deputy Vice-Chancellor - AF&P
Registrar A&R
Registrar (A&HC)
Finance Officer
Total

Summary of Council Expenses 201912020

Name Sitting Mileage

. Allowance Allowance
Dr. Ken Nyaundi 460,000 187,252

Dr. Moses Siruri
Marwa 1,000,000 80,200

David Namu Kariuki 1,080,000 306J79
Pauline Wamarwa
Ngari 780,000 24'7,770

Ruth Adhiambo
Okowa 200,000 40,211

Sammy R Oleku I .160.000 536.164

Dr. Mary Gaturu 520,000 24,027

Jospeh Kiari 160,000 39,211

Moses Gakuru 20,000 17,183

Laikipia University Council is the governing body of the University and therefbre a

related party ro the University.ln 201912020 linancial year, the University Council
held various meetings in line with their mandate as stipulated in the University
statutes and the Charter. The allowances paid to the members were as fbllows;

2019t2020

Kes.
12,625,752
r 0,693,380
5,353,966
7,253,0n
7,253,ofi
6,172,330

49,351,450

2018t2019

Kes.
r l,836,208
t0.223.843
5,344.968
7.253.01
7.253,0fi
6,337 "731

48,248,773

Total

r,888,893

0 t,6'/6.600
0 2,207,420

0 1,570,011

Accom-
modation

276,641

586.400

8ts.24t

Lunch Hono-
rarlum

8,000 957,000

10,000

6,000

Susan Aletia
Total

20,000

5,400,000
34, I 83

I,512,380

542.241

72,800

861 ,69s
2s4,800

9 l.000
18,200

36,400

3,555,419

0

8,000 0 32 I ,01 I

8,000 0 2,565,860
8.000 0 806.827

6,000 0, 296,2n
0 0 55.383

0 0 90,583

54,000 957,000 ll,47g,7gg

I iion: I I tn\ t t \tt\ lt)r l,tltt,.l I t,tt'1,'nn,trtr tn r tl .\,,, tt rr
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

The University has been operating without a Chancellor after prof. R. Munavu's

term expired in2017l20l8 with no replacement from the Government.

The Govemment of Kenya is also a related party to the University especially

in terms of financing and policies. During the year under review, the National

Government through the Ministry of Education disbursed Kes. 863,236,998 for
recurrent expenditure and Kes. 89,378,876 for capital expenditure.

j. Employee Benefits (Retirement Benefit Costs)

Laikipia University, jointly with Egerton, Kisii and Chuka Universities operates a

contributory pension scheme for eligible employees. The assets of the scheme are

held separately in a trustee administered fund that is funded by both employees

and the University.

The University obligation to the scheme is the contribution of 20% of basic Salary

whereas the employees contribute l0% of their basic Salary. The University also

contributes to the National Social Security Fund (NSSF) for staffs in grade I-lV.
Contributions to this fund are determined by the local statutes. Currently, the NSSF

rate is at Kes. 200 per employee per month.

The University contributions to the above schemes are charged to the Statement

of Financial Performance in the year to which they relate. The University has no

further obligation once the contributions have been remitted to the pension fund.

The University has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions

if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating

to employee service in the current and prior periods. The University's contributions
to the defined contribution schemes are recognized as an employee benefit expense

in the year which it relates.

All employees are expected to take their annual leave as and when it matures

during the year, otherwise, forfeit it. Hence there is no accrued annual leave at the

statement of financial position date.

Employee's entitlements to gratuity are recognized when they accrue to contractual

employees. A provision is made for the liability for such entitlements as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the statement of financial position date. Such

employees become entitled to the gratuity on completion of their contracts and the

payments out of this are charged to the accrued gratuity account.
lision: .l L,'nito.\i^ lir lilutd Trunilin'trtriot ol SoLiatr
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Notcs to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30'h .lune, 2020

k. Financial Risk Management

The University's activities cxposL- it to a r,'aricty olllnancial risks including credit

and liquidity risks. The University's overall lisk nranagenrent prosrammc fbcuses

on unprcdictability olchanges in the busincss cnvironrnent and seeks to rnininrize
the potential advcrsc efl'ect of such risks orr its pe'rlirrrrrance by setting acceptable

levels of risk. Thc University's linancial risk management objectives and policies

are detailed belou,:

* Credit risk Management

Crcdit risk ariscs fiorn cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and

financial institutions as rvell as crcdit cxposures to students.

(-redit risk is the risk that countcrparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss 1o the University. The University's crcdit risk is

primarily attributable to its receivablcs. The arror-lnts presented in the stater.nent of
financial position are net ol-allclrvances fbr doubtful rcceivablcs, estimated by the

University's nranagcrncnt bascd on prior experience and their assessment of the

current econ<lnric environnrent.

Thc crcdit risk on liclurd tirnds rvith financial institutions is low, because the counter

partics arc banks with high credit-ratings. The University's policy is payrnent on

registration and thus studenls' receivables are categorized as either past due or
irnpaired. Tlrc anrount that besl represents the University's maxirnum exposure to

crcdit risk is rnade up as tbllows;

Crtdit risk Analysis
Details Fully Performing

Kes.

38.604.328

38-6Q4J28

D.A2,W9.
4p2&!

Impaired
Kes,

Total
Kes.

133.722.560

83.1 60. I 35

38,604,32ti

255Afi-A24

Past duc

Kes.

As at 30 Junc. 2020

Studcnts Receivables

Other Ileccir,'atrles

Bank Ralanccs

As at 30.lune. 2019

Str-rdcnts [i cceivablcs

Othcr Receivablcs

Bank [Jalances

133.722.560

83,1 60.1 35

2,1{,EE2J95 0

132.719,663

9t.561.292

132.'719.663

9t.561.292
22.292.890

?1!.f4j-L4541@p55 0

)ision: I ( nt\(r\tl\ ltD'l,tlil&l litil\l,rilktttrn rl .*xur
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30'h June, 2020

* Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the University will not be able to meet its financial

obligations as they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management includes

maintaining sufficient cash balances, and the availability of funding from an

adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the

underlying businesses, the finance department maintains flexibility in funding by

maintaining availability under committed credit lines. Ultimate responsibility for

liquidity risk management rests with the University Management Board, which has

built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the University's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management

requirements. The University manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking

facilities and through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintain sufficient cash to meet the

University's obligations. The university Management Board reviews the cash

forecasts regularly and determines the University's cash requirement

The table below analyses the University's financial liabilities into relevant

maturity period based on the remaining period at the end of reporting period to the

contractual maturity date.

Liquidity risk Analysis

Details Less than
one Month

Kes.
As at 30 June, 2020
Trade Payables
Contractors
SSP Claims
Prepaid Fees

Caution Money
Borrowings
Other Payables

As at 30 June, 2019
Trade Payables
Contractors
SSP Claims
Prepaid Fees

Borrowings
Other Payables
Caution Money

.:_ ?:t_8,7_r0j190

0 30,645,5 l6

417,876,902

llsion: .1 l.trtitL'rstt-r' lrr lilwrl honlirnulrnr ol Srx iL'tt
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0
0

0
0
0
0

Between
l-12 Months

Kes.

15,130.240
l 0,387,1 54

733,320
28.874,440
2.964,000

Over 12

Months
Kes.

15,399,486
67,148,241

130,401,948
0

14,168,020
0

5l

16,449,339
63,423,479

124,050,034
577,994

0

34,5 15,805
761

Total

Kes.

30.529,726
77 s15 1qS

r3r,135,268
28.874,440
t7,132,020

0
188 76

388,395,325

44.942,123
67,148.242

194.943,814
28,291,382

0
65, l6l .32 I

t7

5l
0
I

28,492,784
3,724,763

70,893,780
2'7,713.388

20
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30'h June, 2020

* Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk - Foreign exchange risk arises from recognized
assets and liabilities. The University operates wholly within Kenya and
its assets and liabilities are denominated in Kenya shiltings. The Council
therefbre believes there is no risk ofsignificant losses due to exchange
rate fluctuations.

(ii) Price risk - The University does not hold any financial instruments
subject to price risk.

l. Comparative ligures

Where ltecessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been
amended or reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

m. Research and Development

Research and development expenditure is charged to income statement in the year
it is incurred

n. Interest on Loans

Interest on loan has been charged as expenses in the year they have been incurred.
The policy is to accrue all un-paid interest relating to the year under review.

o. Tax Exemption

Laikipia University is among institutions of higher learning in Kenya. All public
Universities are classified under Not-lbr-Profit organizations (Npos) and they
enjoy tax exemptions and incentives from Government because they provide
services that positively influence social welfhre. These services should be provided
free of chargc. belor.l,cost or at the very minimum cost. The NPOs include:

', Churches/Rcligion Organizations
'/ Hospitals

For NPos to be exempt fiom Income Tax. they must have been established solely
to;

lision: I I iltt(r\1t\ ltil'lttltttl httil\futrntttrilt t'l \t\.trt\
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

o Relief poverty or distress of the Public

o Advance religion or education.

The entity by virtue of being a public university and classified under the Not-
for -Profit Organizations (NPOs) have been exempted from income tax. NPOs

are exempted from income tax on income received from the activities of the

organization, if the income is wholly used to support the public benefit purposes

for which the organization was established and in this case to advance education

by Public Universities.

3. Government Grants

IAS 20 applies to all govemment grants and other forms of government assistance.

A government grant is recognized only when there is reasonable assurance that;

a. The entity will comply with any conditions attached to the grant and

b. There is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received

Laikipia University receives capitation from government of Kenya through the

Ministry of Education (MoE) for recurrent and development capitation. During the

year under review, the Govemment through MoE remained the highest financier of
the University atl7 .77%o ofthe total revenue. The University received a total of Kes.

863,236,998 as recurrent capitation during the year and accounted for as revenue

in the statement of financial performance. Excluded in this was Kes. 89,378,876

for development expenditure which was accounted for in the accumulated reserves

under the capital fund (See Appendix IV).

Recurrent Government Grants

Code
40-0 l -00 I

Description
GOK Recurrent

Sub-Total

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.

863,236,998
863,236,998

2018t2019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.

861,921,103

861,921,103

4. Grants & Donations

The University recorded a very small percentage 0.01% on grants and donations

totaling to Kes. ll8,6l7 during the year. The University retains 10o/o on research

funds which accounted for Kes. 10,000 in the 201912020 financial year. Other
grants and donations included a donation of Kes. 108,617 from the Deputy

Vice Chancellor (ARSA), Professor Wanjiku Chiuri, for Hyma Day Care in the

University.
)'ision; .4 Ltnivrtit.t'.litr lhlu*l Trant/irmaiot o/ St,<ic't|
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

Donations to students by Higher education Loans Board (HELB) and Constituency
Development Funds (CDFs) are posted directly to students accounts to reduce

receivables but not revenue to the University. Grants and donations to the University
during the year were as follows;

Grants & Donations

Code Description
40-01-002 Research Grants

40-01 -003 Other Grants & Donations

Sub-Total

5. Students'Fees

Students'Fees

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes,

10.000

108,6 1 7

I18,617

2018t20t9
(30.06.201e)

Kes.

95.830

228.000

323,830

Revenue from students'fees is accounted for over the period in which they relate.

Fees paid in advance are carried forward as excess/prepayments under trade and

other payables. During the period under review, the University recorded students'

fees amounting to Kes. 239,252,345 translating to 2l .56oh of total revenue. Tuition
fees was the highest at Kes. 92,713,500. The sharp decline was as a result of
University closure during COVID-19 pandemic. The following is the on students'

fee breakdown;

Code
40-02-00 I

40-02-002
40-02-003
40-02-004
40-02-005
40-02-006
40-02-007
40-02-008
40-02-009
40-02-0 I 0
40-02-0 I I
40-02-012
40-02-013
40-02-014
40-03-00 I
40-03-002
40-03-006
40-03-007

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes,
92,713,500

129,500
777,500

12,69 I ,000
16,003,000
r s,826,030
r 2, I 53,500
10,549,965
10,713,600
23,820,800

8,673,000
10,427,200
13,445,000
4,046,000
5,923,750

10,000
40 I,s00
947,500

239,252,345

2018t2019
(30.06.20r e)

Kes.
220,676,266

466"s00
578.600

9,234,980
14.690,940
14,286,694
8,708.250
4,482,958
9,664.610

32,452,982
4,87 I ,01 0
8,385,595

I r,684,550
2,976,100

539.945
26,000

Description
Tuition
Application Fee
Students lD
Registration
Examination Fee
Material Development
Activity Fee
Students Medical Fee
Library Fee
Students Supervision Fee
Laboratory Charges
Convocation Fee
Computer Charges
Accommodation
Retakes & Supplementary
Remarking fees
Certificates Late Collection
Academic Transcripts
Sub-Total

1,054,900
344,780,879

jtision : .4 L n t r t r.s r t t ./o t l il ucd Ti un.t fu t ruut it rt t i .* )r i.' t r'
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Encled 30"'June, 2020

6. Other Miscellaneous lncome

The University recorded a total of Kes. 7.-152.420 translating to 0.66oh of the total

income during thc period. This was a decline by 8l .1% cornpared to 20I 8/2019 FY

which recorded a total of Kes. 40,222,3tt8 in I.uiscellaneous inconre. Included in

rniscellaneous income was Kes. 14. l2 rnillion lbr itrsurance claim received during

the year. An analysis olother incomes tbr the year is as fbllows;

Other Income
2019t2020

(30.06.2020)
Kes.

0

126,628

56,000

5,85 1 ,05 1

564,000

57,125
0

12.600

I 12,800

2,000

0

500

28',7,7 t6
174,000

r 08,000

7,352,420

201812019
(30.06.20r9)

Kes.

1,500

28,087

6.027.305
t2.920,7 50

545.3 l5
4.454,422

264^318

5.200

241.925
871.551

l4,r 15,500

2.500

737.950
0

t,

40,222,388

Code
40-03-003
40-03-004
40-03-005
40-04-00 I

40-04-002
40-04-003
40-04-004
40-04-006
40-04-009
40-0.1-01 l
40-04-ot1
40-04-0 I 9

40-04-02 I

40-04-025
40-04-026

Description
Exam. Cards Replacement

Library Fines

Students' Danra-{es

Carnpuses Incolr:c
Rent Irrconre

Medical Charges - Guests

NHIF Rebates

Tendcring Incot.tre

Hire of Transport
LU Maratlron

lnsurance Claitn
Sale o1'Detergents

Miscellaneous lncorre
lnter-Faculty Transl'ers

Cuest I-lousc Incorne

Sub-Total

7. Staff Costs

The nurnber of ernployees at the close olperiod endcd 30'r'June 2020 was 54 I

cornpared to 556 in 20182019 FY. The decrease in nurnber of statFwas as a result

staffretirernents within the period.'the total nurrber of'staffas at 30'h June 2020 was

composed of 6 rnembers of the University Manageurent Board, 100 teaching staff

and 435 notl-teachitlg statl. The University incurred a total of Kes. 907,559,U44

to cater tbr stalf salaries and benefits. Included in stail'costs is cornpensation to

University Management Board arrrounting to Kes. 49,351,450 fbr 20 ltt/20 l9 as

indicated below:

I isiott: I I ii\\'t\ ttt // )r I' tl tk'Ll lj,ilt.\L il t,lttttt'tt t'1 .\t t tt t\
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

University Management Board Remuneration 2019t2020
Kes.

12,625,752

10,693,380

5,353,966
7,253,011

7,253,01r
6,172,330

49,351,450

Vice-Chancellor
Deputy Vice-Chancellor - ARSA
Deputy Vice-Chancellor - AF&P
Registrar A&R
Registrar (A&HC)
Finance Officer
Total

2018t2019
Kes.

I 1.836.208

10,223,843

5,344.968
7.253,011

7,253,0n
6.337.731

48,248,773

There were no other related party transactions by the University Management
Board members such as loans or advances or any other item described under
IPSAS 20.

The University together with Egerton, Kisii and chuka Universities operates a

defined contribution staff provident scheme. The university contributes 20oh of
basic salary to pensionable staffin grade 5- l5 which totaled Kes. 56,357,g06 during
the year. The University has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. Employees on
contacts are entitled to service gratuity on successful completion oftheir contracts
and recognized when they accrue. Gratuity to staffon contract and those retiring is
payable at3lo/o of basic salary for every year worked. The University paid gratuity
amounting to Kes. 38,900,414 during the year.

All employees are expected to take their annual leave as and when it matures
during the year, otherwise, forfeit it. Hence there is no accrued annual leave at the
statement of financial position date.

Wsion: .l Lniv,rrn lit ltlil.Ll h..ut\h)rn.tion ol snLi!t.\
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

Detailed breakdown to staff costs during the year is as follows;

Staff Costs

Code
50-0 l -00 l
50-0 I -002

50-0 I -003

s0-0 l -004

50-0 I -005

50-0 l -006

s0-0 l -007

50-0 I -008

50-0r -009

50-0l-0l0
50-02-00 l
s0-02-002
50-02-003

50-02-004
s0-02-00s
50-02-006
s0-02-007
s0-02-008
50-02-009
50-02-01 I

s0-02-013
50-02-014

50-02-0 I 6

Description
Basic salary

House Allowance
Hardship Allowance
Medical Allowances
Commuting Allowance
NSSF (Employer)

Pension (Employer)
Leave Travel
Gratuity
Other Personal Allowances
Passage &Baggage
Staff(Dental & Optical) Expenses

Staff Med. Expenses (Hospitalization)

Casual Labour
Group Life insurance

Internship
Locum Salary

Staff Development/Training
Tuition Fee Waiver
StaffFuneral Expenses

Staff Uniforms
Sabatical Expenses

National Industrial Training Authority
(NrTA)
Total Staff Costs

20t9t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.
383,213,237

187,756,934

83,851,228
12,886,529

66,022,207

551,600

56,357,806
5,5 19,81 5

38,900,414

42,904,084
449,319

774,772
10,991,391

1,535,763

9,469,291
1,683,542

683,636

889,472

906,700

190,000

334,855
1,130,000

327,550

201812019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.

371,154,514
183,920,641

82,073,777

t2,696,245
65,295,290

584,400

55,1 94,308

5,279,315
23,054,394
48,472,8st

439,136
985,1 l0

16,052,405

2,392,901
8,886,561

896,799

0

1,661,090

38,000
754,530
223,392

0

0

907,330,144 880,055.660

lision: ..1 ( ntlL't\ i A. lor l il ud T Ltr:fin'na i(Dt ol,\o( irtt'
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30'h June. 2020

8. AdministrativcExpenses

The University incurred a total of Kes.65,271,322 as administrative expenscs in

201912020 compared to Kes. 13.699,01 I in 20 l8120l9 FY as itemized belowl

Administrativc Expenses

Code
50-03-00 r

50-03-002
50-03-003
50-03-004
50-03-005
50-03-006
50-03-007
50-03-00tt
50-0-l-009
50-03-0 l 0

50-03-01 I

50-03-0 I 3

50-03-0 I 4

50-03-0 I 5

50-03-0 1 6

50-03-0 r 7

50-03-0 r ri

50-03-0 I 9

50-03-020
50-03-02 I

-s0-03-022
50-03-023
50-03-024
50-03-025
50-03-026
50-03-02'l
50-03-02ti
50-03-029
50-03-030
50-03-032
50-03-034
50-03-042
50-03-044

Description
Travcl & Subsistence
Transport operating Expenses
Electricity Expenses

OfIce Stationcry
Audit Fees

Se-curity Inliastructure
Advcrtising & Publicity
Publishing & Printing
Postage'& Tclephone
Photocopying Expenscs

Conlputer charges & Stationery
Public Celebrations
Contracted Prolcssiorral Scrviccs
Rcvaluation olAsscts
Gcneral Licenses

Rents & Rates

Bank Charges
Tcndering Expenses

Quality Assurance

Stratcgic Plan/Charter Launch

Maintenancc of water & Scweragc

ISO Expcnses/Launch

Perfbrmance Contracting
Software Maintenancc Expenses
IJcalth Wcek
Subscription to University Regulatory []odics
Cleaning Matcrials
Mceting ['.xpenscs
[)ctergcnt Expenses
OIfice Running Expenses
Studcnts' Rcgistration Exp.

Resource Mobilization Expenses
Complaints Resolution Exp.
Sub Total

20t9t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.

22.887.357
5.533.177

10,920,530

t,434,855
696.000

I ,5 75,802

1,205,565

78,600

820.850
4.031

2,059,427

15.500

20ti,800
0

609,993

247.114
655.307

474.353
0

r,030,063
42.585

4.604.t71
84t,822
939,886

996.555

t.236.906
478,597

2,33t.73s
142.359

770.282
I ,339.94 |

|,077,961
I 1.200

65,271,322

2018t2019
(30.06.20 r 9)

Kes.

22.5 84.595

ii.320.46 I

I 5. 143,0 I 5

2.166.528
696.000

2.246.530
1.448.3 r9

27.000
1.054.9 t0

?ol go5

2.431.009

20.000
57. I 00

4 t 1.900

l-s2.31 3

1.2e0,000

534.050

123.900

le3.t64
625.200
372.7 t4

5.298,578

1.0 r3.847
516,tt99
903.225

4r.t.700
467.640

3. 169.3 tt2

2rl.r) l0
| .103.079

0

0

49.200
73,699.071

Iision: 1 I nt\'(1 \tt\ lttr l,tlrtLtl l'rons/in nwtrot ttl -\rn i<tt
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

9. Repairs & Maintenance Expenses

An analysis to repairs and maintenance expenses indicated that the University
incurred a total of Kes. 8,281,891 in 201912020 compared to Kes. 7,595,057 in

201812019 FY. Included in the current expenditure is Kes. 6,384,351 on general

repairs, vehicle repairs at Kcs. 1,206,110 while machinery repairs took Kes.

691,430 as indicated below;

Repairs & Maintenance Expenses

Code Description
50-04-001 General Repairs

50-04-002 Vehicle repairs

50-04-003 Machinery repairs

Sub Total

Contracted Services

10. Contracted Services

The University contracted various companies and organizations to offer various

services during 201912020 FY. The services included insurance, legal services and

cleaning and sanitary. These services cost the University Kes.2,927 ,642 compared

to Kes. 2,667,644 in the last financial year. Included in current expenditure is

Kes. 1,390,301 for legal services and Kes. 1,265,642 for vehicle insurance during

the year. The following is the breakdown for contracted services;

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.

6,384,351

I,206, r l0
691,430

8,281,891

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.

1,390,301

87,780

183,827

1,265,734

2,927,642

2018t2019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.

5,095,822
874.649

t.624,586
7,595,057

2018t2019
(30.06.20r9)

Kes.

819,078

534,600
106,991

1,206,975

2,667,644

Code
s0-05-001

s0-05-002
50-05-003
s0-05-004

Description
Legal Charges

Cleaning & Sanitary Services

General I nsurance -Property
Vehicles Insurance

Sub Total

Vision: .,1 I nivo'titt ld lilual litrrtfun'nttitil| d So< id|
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30th June. 2020

11. Academic & Research Expenses

The University's core mandate is teaching and research, during the year under
review, a total of Kes. 118,445,906 was incurred in 201912020 FY compared to
Kes. l8l,0t12 ,677 in 201812019 FY. Detailed academic and research expenses are

as fbllows:

Academic

Code
50-06-00 l

50-06-002
50-06-003

50-06-004
50-06-005

50-06-006
50-06-007
50-06-0013

50-06-009
50-06-0 r 0

50-06-0 il
50-06-01 2

50-06-0 r 3

50-06-0 r 4

50-06-0t 5

50-06-0 I 6

50-06-0 I 7

50-06-0 r 8

50-06-0 I 9

50-06-020
50-06-02 r

50-06-022
50-06-023

50-03-0 I 2

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.

57,I 83,68 l
6,693,347

1,052,040

1,025,904

19.830,762

2,270,100
627,989

0

15,201,715

480,000

146,900

3,626.221

0

53,280

r 25,000

I,864,500
2,252,690
1,851,794

l,334, r 60

988,643

0

1,100,000

0

737,180
118,445,906

2018t2019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.

109.332,428

8.704,542

220,790
212.109

21.055.602
2,406,710

499,630
0

18.333,032

1,652,535

286,400

2.241,153
0

2.500
257.531

3,043,500

1,586,780

5,388,866

I 12,000

4,6t2.781
0

0

0
r,r33,190

181,082,677

& Research Expenses

Description
Part-time Teaching Costs

Graduation Expenses

Teaching Materials
Laboratory Materials & Reagents

Teaching Practice & Field Attachrnent
Academic Field Trips
Research Programrnes

Campuses Expenses

Internet Services

Subscription to e-Journals
Academic Exhibitions
Conl'erence & Seminars

Scholarship Funds

Scnate Expenses

lnternational Travel
KUCCPS Expenses

CUE Expenses

Examination Stationery
Graduation Gowns
External Exarnincrs (Exam Moderation)
Library Expenses

Open & Distance Lcarning
Endowment Fund
Newspapers, Journals & Videos
Sub Total

l.isiotr: .l I nnr't:irt lor litlttLl lt-,ttt:lt,rntLturt rl .\tt tr'rt'
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Laikipia Univcrsity. Annual Rcport & Iiinancial Staterncnts tbr the Year Ended 3Oth Junc 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30'h June, 2020

12. Students Welfare Expenses

Over the years, the University Management Board has made a deliberate decision

to improve students' welfare through a number of ways, among them, Students'

bursaries and work-study programme. The University also supports students

through provision of medical supplies and students' activities like drama and

sports. ln 201912020, the University incurred a total of Kes. 8,740,078 to improve

on students'welfare as follows;

Students Welfare
Code
s0-07-00 r

s0-07-002
s0-07-003
50-07-004
50-07-005
50-07-006
50-07-007

s0-07-008
50-07-009
50-07-0 I 0

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.

3,640,346
502,600

677,270
418,700

0
406,597

200,000

I,000,000
1,792,965

101,600
g,74o,o7g

2018t2019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.

3,306,487

703,900

1,022,421

500.000

110,000

4,77 5,885
307,090

I,000,000
2,370,350

0

14,096,133

Description
Students Medical Supplies

Students Work-study
Cames Exp. (lnter Universities;
Drama Festivals

Cultural Week

LU Marathon
Students' Counseling Expenses

Students' Bursaries

Students Miscellaneous A/c
Subscription to DSTV
Sub Total

13. Council Expenses

The University approves formal and transparent remuneration policies to Council

members. These policies clearly stipulate remuneration elements such as meeting

attendance/sitting allowance, transport re-imbursements and honorarium to the

Chancellor and members of Council in line with the industry. All Council members

are paid a taxable sitting allowance of Kes.20,000 for every mecting attended.

During the year under review the University incurred a total ot'Kes.ll,478,799
for 201912020 as compared to Kes. 9,522,41I in 201812019. The reason for high

expenditure in current financial year was as result of more meetings held by

Council members to witness the various achievernents during the year. Details of
this line item are as follows;

)'isiur: .l L N|t^itt /i)t liiluL'Ll lirus/ortuttirilt t)l .\t)< iL'tt
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

14. Finance Charge

Finance charge is any fee representing the cost ofcredit, orthe cost ofborrowing.
It is interest accrued on, and fees charged for, some forms of credit. It includes

not only interest but other charges as well, such as financial transaction fees. The

University had no outstanding loan balance in 201912020 FY hence no expenditure
was incurred.

1 5. Depreciation & Amortization

The University policy is to apply full year depreciation at the year of purchase with
no depreciation on disposal of an asset. The University provided a total of Kes.

34,782,057 as depreciation on Assets during the year. Included in this was Kes.

32,564,540 on property plant & equipment (PPE), Kes. 2,067,517 on library books

and amortization of intangible asset (ERP) at Kes. I 50,000. ERP work-in-progress
was not amortized as per policy. A transfer for excess depreciation amounting to

Kes. 16,823,542 as a result of gain on revaluation was made between revaluation
and revenue reserves.

Council Expenses

Code Description
50-08-001 Council SittingAllowance
50-08-002 Council Mileage Allowance
50-08-003 Council Honoraria
50-08-004 Council AccommodationAllowance
50-08-005 Council Lunch Allowance

Sub Total

Provision for Depreciation & Amortization

Code
50- I 0-00 I

50- I 0-002

50- l 0-003

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.
5,400,000

1,512,380

957,000

3,555,419

54,000

11,478,799

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.
32,564,540

2,067,517

150,000

34,792,057

20t8t20t9
(30.06.20r9)

Kes.

4,240.000
1,584,61I

1,044,000

2,621,800
32,000

9,522,411

2018t2019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.

14,287,666

646,074
0

14,933,740

Depreciation on PPE

Depreciation on Library Books
Amortization of Intangible Assets

Sub Total

)ision: .l [ iltrLr\tt.r' Lt litluttl hun.tlrmatrn ol Sx it'tt'
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30'h June, 2020

16. gaa Debts

Bad debt is an expense that a business incurs once the repayment ofcredit previously

extended to a customer is estimated to be uncollectible. Bad debt is a contingency

that must be accounted tbr by all businesses who extend credit to customers, as

there is always a risk that payment will not be received. As a result, a provision

for bad and doubtful debts need to be included in the income statement. Laikipia

University made a general provision for bad and doubtful debts on receivables

from exchange transaction at the close of 201912020 FY. Irrecoverable debts are

also written offas an expense in the income statement. Details of this line item are

as follows;

Bad Debts
(D Provision for Bad Debts

Receivables from Exchange Transactions

Less Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts (i) l}yu
Net Receivables from Exchange fransactions
Receivables fiom Non- Exchange Transactions

Total Net Receivables
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision lbr Bad Debts

(ii) Bad Debts Written-off
Item
Farm Dues

Bookshop Dues

Medical Dues

Imprests

Total Debts Written ofT

2019t2020
Kes.

216,882,69s
21,688,270

195,194,426
0

195,194,426
(739,826)

2018t2019
Kes.

224,280,955
22,428,095

201,852,859
0

201,852,859

2.294.816

2019/2020
Kes.

0

0

0

0

0

201812019

Kes.

34,370
450

0

0

34,820

The negative figure on provision fbr bad debts was as a result of decrease in

receivables from exchange transaction.

17. Loss on Assets Disposal/De-recognition

During the year under review there were no de-recognition or disposal of assets

and therefore no loss or gain on de-recognitionidisposal of assets. The University

reported a loss of 1.49 million in20l8l2019 as loss on disposal/ de-recognition of
assets.

llsion: .1 l'ilitcr\il\ l(r- IilucLl Ii'ott/itrntti()tt tl \)(i!lt
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

Loss on Disposal/ De-recognition of Assets
Code Description
50-16-001 Loss on Disposal ofAssets

Sub Total

18. Farm Operations

Farm Trading, Profit and Loss Account
For the Year Ended 30'h June, 2020

Details

Sales

Cost of Sales

Gross Profit/(Loss)

Expenses

Net Profit/(Loss)

19. Catering Operations

Catering Trading, Profit and Loss Account
For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

Details

Sales

Cost of Sales

Gross Profit/(Loss)

Expenses
Net Profit/(Loss)

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.

0

0

20t8/2019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.

1,492,7 63

1,492,763

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.

l,649,gg0
81,012

1,568,878

1,557 ,212
11,666

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.

5,539,752

4,439,398
1,100,354

176,747

923,607

2018t2019
(30.06.20r9)

Kes.

2,320,s77
1,819,618

500,959

1,245,666
(744,707)

20t8t2019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.

7,207,404
7,445,9t9
(238,515)

265,190
(s03,705)

) ision: I I Dttr\1t\ lt,r ldlud hiu\lt)tndtt)il t)l .\tt(tr't\
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

20. Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks

and other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three

months or less.

NB:
Bank accounts marked with *** had negative balances at the close offinancial year
and are therefore reported under note 27.

)?sion: .1 L.'trir-tt'ttr'liu' lihatl Tion.tfurnntit)n (l t,< i(l

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Bank Account Name
Account
Number

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

2018t2019
(30.06.201e)

Kes. Kes.

KCB Main Account 110216r683 27,731,558.45 16,391,087

KCB Nakuru Account 1r01909080 'l **
!t't*

KCB Development Account l 1 20980534 3s6,337.9s 204.452

KCB Research Account t12543'7723 4l 8. l0l .70 7 t1.094
KCB Farm Account 1102161551 127,456.70 160.704

KCB Catering Account I 102168688 82,299.80 463.230

KCB Bookshop Account 1102161829 295,128.30 951.208

KCB - Mararal Fees Account 11359207 10 :l** ***
KCB - Mararal CDF Account 1134913397 1.284.125.10 l .289.165

Co-op Fees Account 1129025576702 359.79'7.93 252,838

Co-op Bank Fees Account r129501778000 I 39,710.40 **{.

Co-op Bank Nyahururu Fees Account 112903727 1600 *t It 'lt*:+

Co-op Bank Naivasha Account 1129037293400 90,922.13 95,889

Co-op Bank - Marathon Account 1 1 200364s3400 r ,032,5 19.00 958.709

Co-op Bank - Gratuity/Caution Money
Account

I 100036453400 2,447,006.20 I 53,879

Equity Fees Account 160295840456 429,821.81 *'**

Equity Chancellors & Alumni
Endowment Fund Ac.

160264998833 699,580.00 400,000

PetW Cash Control Account r 0-05-002 18,602.80 0

MPESA Pay bill 829850 239.246.00 239,246

Total 35,752,214.27 22,271,502

Cash in Hand 2,852,114.00 21,389

Total 38,604,328,27 22,292,890

@ Laikipia University is ISO 9001:2015 and ISOIEC 27001:2013 Certified e
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30'h June, 2020

2 1. Accounts Receivables

The University prepares its finar.rcial stater.nents on IPSAS Accrual. lncorne is
recognized on invoicing with double cntry as accoullts receivable. At the close of
201912020 FY the Univcrsity had Kes. 194.915.624 under accounts receivable.

Students' Fees balances were the highest at Kes. 133"122,560.

2019t2020
(30.06.20r 9)

Kes.

t33,722,560
1.862,823

3.566,894

715,000

52,873,000

2,516,750
4,510.496

387.047

r 8.1 t4
60,257

t32,564
1,28 r,233
3, I 85,01 I

9,009,623

1,08 I ,324

2018t2019
(30.06.20r 9)

Kes.

t32.7 t9.663
1.862,ti23

3.-s66.tt94

7,854,500

52,873.000
8.964.325

4.510.496
310.817

l tt.l l4
60.257

124.01 I

1.276.033

326.906
8,699,842

l,Ori 1,324

(i) Receivable from Exchange'I'ransactions
Details
Studcnts' Fcc Ilalarrccs

Fee Receivablc [rgcrton University
Eldoret Campus (Elgon View) Students' Account
Nakuru Campus Studcnts' Account
Errrbu Campus Students' Account
Nakuru Campus [)ilector's Salary Account
Embu Carlpus Dircclor's Salary Account
Farm Dcbtors
Bookshop Debtors

Mcdical Debtors

Salary Advancc
Leasehold

Un-surrendered Inrprcsts

Deposits & Pre-paynrcnts

SSP Tax

Contractors (Capital Plojccts)- Reliable ('oncrctc
Works
Rcceivable on Assels [)isposal
Total

Less Provision lbr Bad & Doubtfirl Dcbts aa) l0%

Net Receivable from Exchange Transactions

(ii) Receivable from Non-exchange -l'ransactions

Dctails
G.O.K. Capitation - Recrrrrent

r,960,000 0

31.950

224,280,955216,882,695

2t,688,270 22.428,0es

195,194,426 201.852.859

2019t2020
(30.06.20r e)

Kes.

0

20r8/2019
(30.06.20r9)

Kes.

7'7.269.549

77,269,549

Total Net Receivables 195,194,426 279,122,408

1u;L;Oia Universitv is ISO 9001:2015 and tSO/lEC 271't0l:20l3Certified (@
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30'h June, 2020

22. Inventories

The accounting for inventory involves determining the correct ttnit counts

comprising ending inventory, and then assigning a value to those units. The

University conducts a physical count/stock taking on inventories held at the close oi'

each financial year. The resulting costs are then used to record an ending inventory

value for recognition in the statement of financial position. The University recorded

closing inventory of Kes. 1 9,392,08 I at the close of year as follows;

Inventory Stores Summary By Classification As At 30th June' 2020

201912020 201812019

Inventories (30.06.2020) (30.06.2019)

Kes. Kes.

Animal Feeds 297 '943 399,636

Boma Rhode Hay-Bales 0 73'350

Carpentry Materials 1,652,902 1,611,956

Chemicals & Fertilizers 618,610 245,410

Cleaning Materials 66,735 132,943

Diesel/ Petro/Lubricants 19'558 3,434

Dry Foodstuff 176,380 147,182

ElectricalAppliances 810,405 601t,789

Gift Shop Items 161,894 391'208

Harvested crop/Seeds 1,224,975 174,725

Masonry Materials 587,175 874,234

MedicalDrugs/Reagents 1,908,405 2.979,007

Medical Laboratories Apparatus 1,000,578 709,419

Office Stationery 2,721,917 2'990'80u

Painting Materials 1,168,044 720'050

Perishable Foodstuff 56,243 163'000

Plumbing Materials 613,056 921,037

Science Laboratories Apparatus I ,533,967 I '709' I 00

Science Laboratory Reagents 1,656,645 2.088,954

Tools & Spare parts 970,360 528'010

Vet Drugs 100,690 1.580

Wefding Materials 2,045,599 197'080

Total 19,392,081 17,676,910

nrion: ..1 l;ni\\r'vtr /iil liilra Ll Tittns/it'ntttttt'n t)f \(\ t(tl
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

23. Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE)

International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) l7 stipulates that an
entity shall choose either the cost model or the revaluation model as its accounting
policy and shall apply that policy to an entire class of property, plant and equipment.
During the year under review, the University revalued all assets in all classes
therefore adopting revaluation model.

The University conducted a revaluation in May 201 9 leading to a revaluation gain
on our assets by Kes. 564 million. Net book value at the close of 2018/2019 Fy
was Kes. 2.03 billion worth of property, plant & Equipment with cost value of
Kes.2.05 billion.

During the year, the University incurred an expenditure of Kes. 102.03 million for
additional PPEs. lncluded in this was Kes. ti8.59 million lbr additionat work-in-
Progress on capital projects and Kes.l3.44 million on acquisition of other ppEs.

The University also capitalized two capital projects on successful completion
and documentation at a cost of 108.05 million at the close of 2olgl2o2o Fy.
This capitalization included Multi-purpose Ilall (vision 2030) at a cost of Kes.
9,381 ,080 and sewerage Phase II at a cost of Kes. 14.352,280. The University also
expensed Masterplan Design at a cost of Kes. 6.508,759, initially recorded under
work-in progress but do not fully meet conditions fbr classification as an asset.

Details of assets movement are as indicated below;

)'itiut: .l l'ntvrritr lrtr lllrutl llunrfutnutr)D t'/ .\t\ itt

f.riLipia University is ISO 900t:2015 and ISO/IEC 27001:20t3Certified 
@



Laikipia University, Annual Report & Financial Statements fbr the Year Ended 30th June 2020

r
N

\X
c

aal

o
r

*.

o
oro

I
Ia

6
a
O€.

d)
ao

6
O
ar
N
6

r
al
o

I
9.
r

a

II
Ir€
N

€q
NF
c
o
d

a
q
a
a
8.

r
Na
N

6
r

I

I

N

I
r
N

o

9
al

d

a
I

6qI
FF€
6
a
.l

F€il
9<

o
I

o
d;

rr
al
6
r

r

a

OO

at

€r
v1

r
I

Ir
I
r
a
€

N

oc

r

al
6

I.l

d

r
dq
€

ara
r
O
-- r

€

6

o:
N
I

€

r

a
vr
ts
6q
6

{g&

LT
tu

v

N

a
N

N

a
$.

d

a a

I
N

I
o

r

a

r

E
rt
ea
F
c

6
c aa

o

r

r
r

a-d
a

N

EF
N6
fI
q

e
v

a
O

I

Io
aI
N

I

aal

a
o r

d

I

a

r

I
rir
ci

a6o

o
a^
?
-.

a

€

F6
.l^
F
!?.

€

.1
r

u)

a9.
N

r

a
6

Oo

o

O
o)
r

a

€r

dq

d
N

E! I
aN
a

@.
@
N€.
E

o
O

r

F

r€ v')
I

a

I

ro r

d

tr
vt
h\or
c
N

6r
N

o
F

I

r IN

c
@

N

€

Ovl
3qr

Li
E.E:
- GF

E€
I

I
I

9-

N
@

@

a

Or

N€
o
o)

6
NI
Ne
6

I I
6

c
o
6I

a6

F€
a
F

I

I

ra
d

o:

I

a r

I

6\
€i
a
F

>& I

r

Ir
I

or
Ir

r
I\I
o
-i

o

v1 n
a

c c arl
$
rl
I

6
v1

dl
o

c

r on

a !t
o
6r.l
nq

I

-lul

'i

v)
f

€

a

N

r r€
a

d

s.

a
a c

cl

ol

6

io
I

€
r

I
U.
E4
.tf

r c

o

6

o9.

6
r ra

N

FvI
h

g
*

-.1 I

a

5

Oo
a
o

r

€€
r

o o
E
odq
r
3

oc

rj

a€
r

O
3

{
$

€

*6

Q

c

=

o

cq!

o

oa
A

tr
a

E

t
o*
a

,
o
U

o

il

a

E!

9

H

cs

o-
OU

E,!

a

,

€

s
U
tro

q

.t
E,

C

I

G

!
!ro
7= O

ON

tr
o

a

cN

u

,o

x!

C)
tro
'5

q
A

N

d

.ta,
6

a
I
o
I
a

iataa
Er!zx

0)

:x
,'< 6r

o4
6rd

;?.)

t^ 6)

6E

aB cl
E.0J

"=no-E
rE!

![I.4)
0CEAo.=z+

rd

I

t

>i-tr
q)

L
-
9

0)

q)

-2
Vision: .,1 l.'nitcrtit.t fit Lilutl lron:firmutirn o/ Srx'ittt

@ 
Laikipia University is ISO 9001:2015 and ISO/IEC 2l[Olt2ll3Certifiea 6



Laikipia Univcrsity, Annual llcpon & Financial Statenrcnts lirr thc Ycar Entlcd 30th .lunc 2020

!:OoOOOaT50
s:-o=3=6^^.=
6650or'5oc'?.!
3€ : E E: B E i'
gc!-CrJ(rcdY.-.=fs=:sNr

==cEE--iiF a'--c -5 Et

rc;rE=s;f
7'xe E E ; il i t
E .s = P'i d:.E P

' u E p >s e +;
=.='i=qoi--.=3 bE-:='r .4-3 g
=-o9oo-Ef.!(5E€f:3t'.3#
!,P.EBbF.E;"6k;..+K:EEEg
Et E,E5 E E; Y
= 9E I c c E = dqXqttsl*q9)-Bie8I=9E;
*=e?.9>;HEs;33gets;E':,;t€q- ,bo95-tro.r-:o
E 3 STtEi & E E=;.EtEt*Y=38;3
:€.E ".EE quE.!E€3:i8-aF?i=
=sl'EoEEEUP'=E E 

= 
E : T S tr- .9

E 
= 

g E {:; E E Eii ; E . doy". 3 >' E F;HsIge;=Et.E3'1€Ec3.=i.E
E U F E :""E I g E:
= - o 

') 
hDq (

E e J E (.' E; E U9 - -c :: = f E E tr.'3-ijct_cull.._.6
gEgE.;F,EE3s,
- 1.; i 50=;'i 4;='i Er c 6 .=- b I t--5 ,

- E : E E E i I € aEEb9od9.--?Ea
{H+;H;EEEgi
oL=OrvrgF
----:uFaEEoI-E'-'{=e.-r'*=* € " : i 

-+,* a i
!EE*HfthE&58
U;
N

o6

d9laq\c

z>

L.P€(JEOc
E A-7 oJ

>ro
Ets9>
6!-^gsEi
^6 ^ Zq o I;

U-
bod;otr 0r.g^l.EV P 9
J 

^ 
Y L

-qul
/--:e^r,U.
o.58-J
I h- o
artr''h.i ii ro .Y

JgLnl-? N o. E

'E= a9€.4i-oap,l
-:N.rU!Og"i ;F:v
-Z SPXo

!i=.=e

6 n c qo= H

HL 5.; tr E
.:rt) ='E\ =G-.-L9EAE EE.i 8
-=\tE,;^*; o 5.qX.r,9
E L .t i, ..1 {d (q o tr:': a
E^6rYa'oa

?=-!GEE7Er-:>859
-qru>-y=-O6)-Es.^!

== E3.-g==;: r 3- P;t!; -qX=EE HE !-; tj
--.9dL2 1.\,2=*
^I-'-4
-=7'=,>, -,. .: F cs
Lq@-(J
!E E .= ar >,

-_c?-.!
UE*3*
E E c'Y;
oa'!P=

E E E{:iaErEi
=aaqa/9L=La)A;i 9 

" 
O:;?>=-i= ''^'=E Ei-iLEre)tre

-ooJ.=ooJ5E EE€ 
=+t\

o

r

6
r

a

I itiotr: .l I utrLrtttr frtr lilrrLtl l)tntlrt ntttitrt t)l .\til tdt'

€

r 6r
€

oo
cd
(9trq\o>o
zi

66

a
F

a
I
r

9o o'.='E N
d.ii X
=q E

=+ =

r

.=N

o:-
H(JX

r

a

F

F
I

N

r
9o a.a'E ;
d'i X
=oFtra-

ro.
€
€

r
I
E

ql

>-

.=dq;e

5ra
.i
!c

9'= =+x;
5 E=

I E aX 6

&
€

5

E6

-..: d

"o;F
.9-6=

o

a

h
P
J

e

F

@Laikipia University is ISO 9001:2015 and ISO/IEC 27001t2013 Certified@



Laikipia University, Annual Report & Financial Statemcnts for the Year Ended 3Oth June 2020

c-q Xo
<u

a3o< 9E
gEO

0.)E@-.oe
9--L U d
(B!'-

'Aaq

Hgg
--aaql 6d ci

bD; =eUU
= 

bobo
-vUooo
5!-o
4a^

- L u

F09

^ 
oovL^

d j-
F-v';i i: ..
E E-ir (lr -l* oo[i
= 

a\)

sS o.n:-
^rY9at 9
{9aa-
^tstJO

-gpfr*3k6g
c:Y^
P^nA
wta6
aoE.i .^
LACO
!E= i
= 

e o j
v-A^
XoFeiE-g
,doF69.:
-,r'A^
d Do-;

.AEa
e6-

v ! U U

-J9^a-OO.^YEiHT:
6\e--

C=JA

.E EsE=
o! 9'c -Cl: E HE*
E tr E.EX
vi
6l

'o
=N

> oX
z ez

$

a
C

r €o
r
d

F

=N

> o:
z ez 6

a €

6
F €

N

+E=S
= o -NE tr eG

TiEA

a
c
c

o

*Pe
E!o

<.=x

o c
Q
o

= ' E:
Eien
9 trEi
<< n3

.-.=d".;q;E:€iE
o

c a
.1

t

I

a
r

F

I

€

\E
tr N=
.9EQ

! dt<uX

c c
€

Ir
IFF

3
a

r F

IF
g

6
u

!,1
6

- O

2>Q
€ e*
9'Z :

.! 6A

cl

6

co

r a
r F

!
0

L)

tr
f
z

E]

F

q

'
AE

d,,i

E,-
E

U-
gts

iR
od@.4
6i 6

Q

d,
O

&
ti
c
,o ts

q)

:x
I6r

ol

o,

r: ?.)

oP
dtr

6ql,trJ)
lloq)-c
-te

0q)

z

E

E
F

d

o

r

!

o
E

UU

lhnngh tt'stttth. (\lu(ailk,tt. tholur.:hi1t, lrttiiliilN, inil(ttalittl trtltl'uch unll (nt.\illkut.\'

'a

nsion: A Uniyo'titt' lir liilucd Trtut;firnutittr ri Srx itlv
Mission: To sot'L' .tludenA und .toL it'lt'

1@ Laikipia University is ISO 9001:2015 and ISO/IEC 27001:20l3CertifieO 6l



Laikipia [Jniversity, Annual Report & Financial Statements for the Year Ended 3Oth June 2020

27. Overdrawn Cashbooks

The University does not operate bank overdrafts. However our cashbooks were
overdrawn due to receipting errors under the power campus sottware which does

not receipt excess f'ees but the money had already been deposited to our bank
accounts. The linancial year 201912020 being a transition period tiom the old
system, errors fiom prior period had an effect on the current financial year but this
is expected to clear once we are done with backlog data. As a result, cheques written
on these cashbooks indicated overdrawn accounts but in actual sense there were
no overdrafts in the afl'ecteci bank accounts. The overdrawn cash books are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.

Biological Assets

Detail

Cattle

Boma Rhodes in Field

Tree Nursery seedlings

Total

Overdrawn Cash Books

Bank Account Name

KCB Nakuru Account
KCB - Mararal Fees Account
Co-operative Bank Account
Co-operative tsank Nyahururu
Account
Equity Account
Grand Total

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

2019/2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.

4,515,000

300,000

576,000

5,391,000

Account
Number

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.

330,700

677,469
I 10r909080
11359207 t0

r t29501778000

112903727 1600

160295840456

20t8/2019
(30.06.2019)

Kes.

5,278,000

0

346.500

5,624,500

2018t2019
(30.06.201e)

Kes.

456,508

248,134
2,474,000

616,299 1,364.160

2,318,345
6,861,147l1624146g

lition: .1 I ilt\\,r\tt\ ltD-lilillLl f\o\lnndutilt ti St'(iL,t\
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

28. Accounts Payables

Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities/short-term payables if
payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities/long-term payables. The University recorded payables amounting to

Kes. 388,395,325 under short-term payables with no pending long-term payable.

Part-time teaching cost were the highest at Kes. 131.12 million accumulated in

prior years due to shortage of funds to clears the payments.

Accounts Payables

(i) Short term Payables
20t9t2020

(30.06.2020)

Kes.

30,529,726

1,428,000

77,535,395

l3 I ,135,268
0.00

17,132,020

28,874.440

2,t38,492
3,968,055

3,753,800

3,619,547

6,765,082

25,768,134

0

0

t,2l'1,076
50.000

2018t2019
(30.06.20re)

Kes.

44,942,123

r,428,000

67.t48,242

I 94.943,8 l4
87.000

17,390,020

28,291.382

90.442

2.2'7e,105

0

0

6,768,082

25.7 5 | .646
42.279

439.740

1.217 .076
50.000

Details
Trade Payables

Audit Fees Payabte (KENAO)

Contractors -Capital Projects

Parttime Teaching Costs

Accrued Council Honoraria

Students Caution Money

Excess Fees (Prepaid Tuition)
Laikipia University Students' Organization (LUSO)

Alumni Account

HELB Control Account

Bursaries Control Account

Salary & deductions payable

Pension Fund

StaffMedicat Claims (Dental & Optical)

0ther staffclaims
Rent & Leasehold in Advance

Rent Deposits Payables

Kenya Revenue Authority (VAT & lncome Tax

Payable)

Cash-in-Transit

Total

53,657,421 22.207,951

822"869

388,395,325

4.800.000

417,876.902

(ii) Long term Payables

Equity Bank Loan

Total

a'ision: .l l)nittsi^ lin l'dlu*l h.utlin'nttidr t)f Suitll
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended 30'h June. 2020

29. Movement in Working Capital

Working capital, also called net working capital, is the antount of money a company
has available to pay its short-term expenses. Changes in net working capital are

the diflerence in the working capital l}om the current year and the previous year.

Working capital is a financial metric which represents operating liquidity available
to an organization. It is the capital of a business which is used in its day-to-day
trading operations, calculated as thc current assets minus the current liabilities.

Positive working capital is when a company has more current assets than current
liabilities, meaning that the company can fully cover its short-term liabilities as

they come due in the next l2 months. Positive working capital is a sign of financial
strength. However. having an excessive amount of working capital for a long time
might indicate that the company is not managing its assets eflbctively.

Negative working capital is when the current liabilities exceed the current assets,

and the working capitaI is negative. Working capital could be temporarily negative
if the company had a large cash outlay as a result of a large purchase of products

and services from its vendors. However, if the working capital is negative for
an extended period of time, it may be a cause fbr concern for certain types of
companies, indicating that they are struggling to make ends meet and have to rely
on borrowing to finance their working capital.

During the year under rcview, the University recorded a positive working capital of
Kes. 52,964.734 cornpared to a negative capital of Kes. 96,629.300 in20l8l20l9
FY as shown on statement of cash-flow. Details of current working capital
movement are as indicated below;

Changes in Working Capital

ITEM

(i) Receivables
(ii) Inventory
(iii) Payables
(iv) BiologicalAssets

Total

2019t2020
(30.06.2020)

Kes.

195,194.426

19,392,08 r

38tt,395,325

5,391,000

608,372,833

2018t20t9
(30.06.201e)

Kes.

279,122.408
17,616.910

417.876,902
5,624,500

720,300,720

Working Capital
Changes

Kes.

83,927,982
(r,7rs.r7r)

(29,481,s76)

233,500

52,964,734

]/ition: ..1 lliltfl'r.\itt l,r litlntl lhulrtrnttton o/ Srx ittr
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Notes to the Flnancial Statements (Contlnued)
For the Year Ended 30th June, 2020

3 I . Additional Work-in-Progress
Work-in-Progress is the total value of the materials and labour tbr unfinished
projects. The University incurred a total of Kes. 88,590.540 ir^r201912020 FY
compared to Kes. 38,595,8t.lg in 201812019 FY as additional costs to the on-going
capital projects. Details of capital expenditure fbrthe period are as shown below;

Addltional Work-in-Progress (Capital Projects Expendlture\ for 201912020

2019t2020 2018/2019
Capltal Project (31.03.2020) (30.06.2019)
Detalls Kes. Kes.
University Gate 2,485,573 I 16.290
New Library & Admin Block 3,875,882 17,1i51,595

Science Laboratories 79,726,645 166,601

Renovation of Students Hostels - Ngare Narok 147,780 444,400
Renovation of ICT Building I,152.791 0

Tuition Block 0 l7,tl5tt,tl00
Sports Grounds & Pavilion 1.201.869 2.158.203
Total l&5!08CI l8"5q5+889

]ision: I liilit\\'.ttt\ l.r liluulTitnlrrnutr)il t)/ S\ idr

I
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A PPE N D IX 11l: Inter-Entity Transfers

The above amounts have been communicated to and reconciled with the Ministry
of Education.

Signed;\a
Finance Officer
Laikipia University

Head ofAccounting Unit
Ministrv of Education

lhion: I I niv rvtr ltr. liiluLtl Ti.Ltts/rtrnntitn rl &r iat

LAIKIPIA UNIVERSITY

a.

Breakdown of Transfers from the State Department for University Education &
Research

Recurrent Grants

Date received as per bank statement
Relating to

Financial Year
08.08.20 r 9 71.936,417

Amount
Transferred

2019t2020
29.08.2019 71,936.417 201912020
27.09.2019 11.936.4t5 2019t2020
01. l l .2019 7 t.936.4t7 2019/2020
29.n.20t9 71.936.4t7 201912020
27.12.2019 71,936,416 201912020
04.02.2020 71,936,417 201912020
02.03.2020 71,936,416 201912020
31.03.2020 71,936,416 2019t2020
18.05.2020 71,936,417 2019t2020
08.06.2020 7 t,936,417 20t912020
26.06.2020 7 t,936,416 201912020
Total Recurrent Grant 863,236,998

b. Development Grants

Date received as per bank statement
Amount

Transferred
Relating to

Financial Year
22.n.2019 63,833,368 2019t2020
10.03.2020 25,545,508 2019t2020
Total Development Grant 89,378,876

Laikipia University is ISO 9ffi1:2015 and ISO/IEC 27001t2013 Certified @
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